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SHCOMP SZCOMP Chinext Index
China Indices in the Past 10 Years
(Data source:Bloomberg)
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Mote: The Shanghai composite index uses the left vertical s,
the Shenzthen composite index and chinext index use the right
vertical axis. The Chinext index dates from June 30 2010,
2010 30
A
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() -
QFII RQFII [2014] 79
2014 11 17 A
WIT
2014 11 17 RQFII A
50
12
25
( IRD )
( HKTRC )
ETF HKTRC IRD ETF 2014 12
31 ETF HKTRC HKTRC
A
RQFII 2015
A WIT

A
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WIT ETF
ETF
ETF HKTRC
ETF
ETF ETF
2014 11 17
A A ETF
wWIT ETF 2014
11 14 ( ) A
ETF wWIT
ETF A
ETF
ETF
ETF
(2019 17 )
)
16,694,229,010.65
(276,623,374,706 ) 99.48
86,574,847.16
( ) (1,434,545,217 ) 0-52
16,780,803,857.81
( ) (278,057,919,924 ) 100
() ETF
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(2019 21 )
)
)
(
)
)
-A
(PING AN
1 26,675,490 78.2 | 2,086,023,318.00| 13.01
INSURANCE ~ GROUP
C0-A)
-A
2 | (KWEICHOW  MOUTAI 1,336,664 895 | 1,196,314,280.00 |  7.46
O LTD-A)
-A
3| (CHINA  MERCHANTS 35,379,812 33.63 | 1,189,823,077.56| 7.42
BANK-A)
-A
4| (INDUSTRIAL  BANK 41,699,319 18.34 764,765,510.46 | 4.77
CO LTD-A)
-A
5| (GREE  ELECTRIC 12,813,412 55.45 710,503,695.40 | 4.43
APPLIANCES 1-A)
-A
6| (MIDEA GROUP CO 11,700,395 50.75 593,795,046.25 3.7
LTD-A)
-A
7 | (WULIANGYE  YIBIN 5,317,758 104.2 554,110,383.60 |  3.45
CO LTD-A)
-A
8| (CHINA VANKE CO 19,443,819 27.52 535,093,898.88 | 3.34
LTD -A)
-A
9 | (CHINA  MINSHENG 83,194,416 6.12 509,149,825.92 |  3.17
BANKING-A)
A
10 43,236,936 11.32 489,442,115.52 |  3.05
(SHANGHAI  PUDONG
DEVEL BANK-A)
-A
11| (crmic securITIES 23,380,382 20.23 472,985,127.86 |  2.95
C0-A)
-A
12 14,976,672 30.25 453,044,328.00 | 2.82
(INNER  MONGOLIA
YILI INDUS-A)
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-A
13| (AGRICULTURAL 115,214,403 3.67 422,836,859.01|  2.64
BANK OF CHINA-A)
-A
14| (31ANGSU  HENGRUI 6,085,565 60.81 370,063,207.65 |  2.31
MEDICINE C-A)
-A
15| (IND & COMM BK OF 64,867,183 5.64 365,850,912.12 |  2.28
CHINA-A)
-A
(BANK OF
16 60,203,859 5.99 360,621,115.41|  2.25
COMMUNICATIONS
C0-A)
-A
17| (cHina STATE 50,508,577 5.56 280,827,688.12 | 1.75
CONSTRUCTION-A)
-A
18| (PING AN BANK CO 21,675,322 12.56 272,242,044.32 1.7
LTD-A)
-A
19| (POLY REAL ESTATE 20,559,010 12.7 261,099,427.00|  1.63
GROUP CO-A)
-A
20| (CHINA  PACIFIC 7,571,334 33.51 253,715,402.34 |  1.58
INSURANCE GR-A)
-A
21| (BANK OF  CHINA 63,403,487 3.8 240,933,250.60 1.5
LTD-A)
-A
22| (HANGZHOU 8,500,923 27.6 234,625,474.80 | 1.46
HIKVISION
DIGITAL-A)
-A
23| (BANK OF BEIJING 38,209,981 5.91 225,820,987.71|  1.41
CO LTD-A)
-A
24| (ANHUI CONCH 5,198,056 39.45 205,063,309.20 | 1.28
CEMENT CO LTD-A)
-A
25| (SAIC MOTOR CORP 8,172,843 24.96 203,994,161.28 |  1.27
LTD-A)
-A
26| (CHINA  YANGTZE 11,903,439 16.69 198,668,396.91 | 1.24
POWER CO LTD-A)
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-A
(CHINA
27 27,091,907 7 189,643,349.00 |  1.18
CONSTRUCTION
BANK-A)
-A
28 22,413,790 8.04 180,206,871.60 |  1.12
(CRRC CORP LTD-A)
-A
29| (GUOTAI JUNAN 9,965,356 16.56 165,026,295.36 |  1.03
SECURITIES CO-A)
-A
30| (CHINA EVERBRIGHT 41,932,141 3.91 163,954,671.31|  1.02
BANK CO-A)
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(2019 21 )

)

53.55

15.47

4.98

2.21

1.95

1.24

2.31

5.79

99.65
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2018 2019
( ) ) ( ) )
(012 12 31 ) 16,772,831,681.40 277,925,820,961 8.2890 137
(013 12 31 ) 20,863,824,165.00 345,713,566,414 7.1451 118
(014 12 31 ) 30,196,914,185.00 500,362,868,045 11.3972 189
(015 12 31 ) 18,331,141,985.70 303,747,022,703 10.6887 177
(2016 12 30 ) 17,192,698,141.40 284,883,008,203 9.9065 164
(017 12 29 ) 19,332,268,991.70 320,335,697,192 12.9313 214
(018 12 31 ) 15,699,621,057.39 260,142,720,921 10.0381 166
2018 14,543,468,613.96 240,985,274,933 12.0643 200
2018 13,768,613,476.04 228,145,925,298 11.4120 189
2018 14,068,658,573.34 233,117,672,560 11.6607 193
2018 13,559,871,426.70 224,687,069,540 11.2390 186
2018 14,130,304,752.83 234,139,149,754 11.7998 196
2018 10 14,198,036,617.50 235,261,466,752 11.0148 183
2018 11 15,417,423,004.48 255,466,699,184 10.9189 181
2018 12 15,699,621,057.39 260,142,720,921 10.0381 166
2019 17,239,589,811.22 285,660,003,172 11.0228 183
2019 18,863,876,058.64 312,574,426,292 12.0613 200
2019 20,096,486,035.31 332,998,773,605 12.5997 209
2019 19,862,909,264.70 329,128,406,516 13.1325 218
2019 17 16,780,803,857.81 278,057,919,924 12.3207 204
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( )
( ) )
(012 12 31 ) 8.60 143
(013 12 31 ) 7.14 118
(014 12 31 ) 11.08 184
(015 12 31 ) 10.58 175
(2016 12 30 ) 9-85 163
(017 12 29 ) 12.92 214
(018 12 31 ) 10.08 167
2018 12.06 200
2018 11.46 190
2018 11.60 192
2018 11.20 186
2018 11.76 195
2018 10 11.06 183
2018 11 10.96 182
2018 12 10.08 167
2019 11.04 183
2019 12.02 199
2019 12.56 208
2019 13.08 217
2019 17 12.30 204
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2012 23
2012 12 31
2013 336,840,000.00 5,581,438,800
2013 12 31
2014 1,416,240,000.00 23,467,096,800
2014 12 31
2015 413,750,000 6,855,837,500
2015 12 31
2016 473,310,000 7,842,746,700
2016 12 31
2017 403,650,000 6,688,480,500
2017 12 31
2018 413,775,000 6,856,251,750

2018

12

31
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C)HC)

2012 23 2012 12 31 ) 13.39
2013 2013 12 31 ) -12.34
2014 2014 12 31 ) 63.41
2015 2015 12 31 ) ~4.03
2016 2016 12 31 ) ~4.79
2017 2017 12 31 ) 33.26
2018 2018 12 31 ) -20.29
() () 100x@a b) b

a ETF )

)
) ) )

2012 23 2,023,500,000 0 2,023,500,000
2012 12 31
2013 1,070,000,000 173,500,000 2,920,000,000
2013 12 31
2014 2,877,500,000 3,148,000,000 2,649,500,000
2014 12 31
2015 2,564,500,000 3,499,000,000 1,715,000,000
2015 12 31
2016 1,121,000,000 1,100,500,000 1,735,500,000
2016 12 31
2017 486,500,000 727,000,000 1,495,000,000
2017 12 31
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( 2018 424,500,000 355,500,000 1,564,000,000
2018 12 31 )

()
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SEHK
SEHK SEHK ( )
( )
CCASS
( )
(i) (i)
(iii)
@ (i) (ii)
(iii)
(b)
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SEHK

SEHK

SEHELZ 350 22514
SERS[ (HRg (8 {)
Hw$ SEHE D F
CORSSERAL TiHEER B
6 2= (08 A (P8
(Fa27Pl Ny —-niEd
AERTEEEREE L)
SEHK
SEHK
( )
SEHK
SEHK ETF ETF
ETF SEHK
ETF
( JDR ) ( )
JDR 2013 27
RQFII  ( () - (RQFIN) )
SEHK ETF
SEHK ETF SEHK
ETF
SEHK ETF
SEHK SEHK ETF
ETE ( )
200
SEHK ETF
ETF
ETF

ETF
SEHK ETF SEHK( )

112/339



EDINETOOOO
OO00D0O00o0O00D0bDO000DO0Odnoo(E27318)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

SEHK ETF
ETF ETF SEHK
ETF
ISIN
ISIN
(
ISIN)
82822 CSOP A50 ETF-R HK0000112307
02822 CSOP A50 ETF HK0000127412
ETF
ETF
ETF
ETF
ETF
ETF
CCASS
ETF
( )
ETF SEHK ETF SEHK
HKEX
FAQ(www.hkex.com.hk/eng/prod/secprod/etf/dc.htm)
( )
() -
ETF
ETF
ETF CCASS
(Renminbi Equity Trading Support Facility)( TSF )
ETF TSF CCASS TSF
TSF ETF
ETF ETF

ETF
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SEHK ETF
KHSCC ~ CCASS ETF
( ) ETF
ETF
ETF CCASS
ETF
ETF 500,000 ETF
ETF
ETF ETF (
) ETF
ETF
ETF ( )
1 ( )
ETF
12 30
ETF
ETF ( 0.00005 )
ETF
ETF ( 0.00005 )
ETF
ETF ETF
ETF ( ()@ )
ETF
ETF
ETF
ETF
ETF
ETF
@ A
(b) ETF RQFII RQFII

ETF
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TSE
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ETF
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ETF
10 )
)
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)
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(iii)
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ETF
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(b) RQFII
( )
ETF
ETF
SEHK ETE
ETF ( ) ETF
ETF
SEHK
ETF CNH
ETF SEHK
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CSOP FTSE AS50 ETF
CSOPETF
2018 12 31
IR 20174 201%F W1THE
g AET AET &N HFEH
Wik
BHE®E
o B F R TR HE 1383 200 1,283 200 22019 f34 22019 £34
EhEE
7 el Bia) 15 582325 704 19 201 704 212 258,100,136 15 310 665,040 )35
FIRFLE 67a7 1443 112 461 40431
FO—-h—henEEE - 25 /00 318 - 424,197 260
RaE= el 136100 741 A1 445 2257210 218 06 502 514
15718555 232 19 354 000 D18 260 456,460 104 320,605,750 208
EESS 15719 938 432 10355 33218 260 470370 218 A0 718600 822
Bk
EhAik
HH0F -7 —~OFELE - 25 766 DG - 426,03 714
FHL L IR A ) 13383330 16 73 350 221761927 IT6ITTA10
FH LR Fi) Aol 1,462 pag &,060 074 24,50 391
FHLTAELEAH 7,108 g6 510358 117,703 247 93,112 762
T Mt & Ta6 g4 728 J62 12,43 142 12,075 586
ARiEast 21750710 50,250 384 360,558 395 BRI M8 B63
¥k
FEFICBETIHTE q 15 fog 175 722 19 305 132 534 260115531424 319 pR6 051050
9 29 CSOP FTSE A50 ETF
2019 4 29
CSOP Asset Management Limited HSBC
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CSOPFTSE AS50 ETF
CSOPETF
2018 12 31
0BEIZAE1E MIME12F 318 2013412A318 1R 12A 318
BT BT e BToiHER BT e
ZE ARz AFET FEH = =
mi
AoiE A T4 TEG 200 515117 135 6210218916 2 535 400 027
FILBNE A Tz 616 270 351,144 0211743 SR8 456
BEE RIS (AR 3 (3,538 401 3467 5 A5% 230 502 (58 552 20 1605 o0 360 162 290
T mith MUREE 4040501 15541 305 TR 6T 416 428 200 200
HHAG/ (X)) &3t e BB laT AT IpgagagRe (3133 403,522) 0320 ST1ATE
#H
B IR A Frap (1510413147 (193 442 5867 (2,502 7 54 5737 (3 205,343 550
| i (12902 111) (16 991 7247 (213 903 960 (281,552 86T)
rEICEIERSER (2303 914) (52332 58 (387 F37,155) (67,142 367)
g | (740 4207 (240 F49) (12263 750 (13 520 554)
MEFEELUHRERA (1119 574 (1,273 D50 (18 556 3120 (21,104 [124)
HEFT ELFFOHD
BP9 M (443 5873 (8 Jai (7 350 237 (14515
e I P ) (15911 091y (19 553 2527 (263 46,778 (E24 013 9567
ToittEERR (615 7557 (1455 4657 (10 169 9707 (24561015
Exsps L T ET N (28353264 BA16 8T 75 (4737902 585
AR (HRE) (3534 320 536) 3708610 153 (55,49 59 128 o 501 G0 £ET
Fi & (37 571.176) (32 A53 f65) (622 554 2560 (876262 3290
2EHESEH EAT1E91712) JB55,736 467 (55,572 24 5 5650 03 715 387 558
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CSOP FTSE AS50 ETF
CSOPETF
2018 12 31
MIHEIIAZLE TR AE1E XNlxEl2afA3lE 0174E12F31E
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EEXESED_LD2Xvy>»3a70-
E =R (TEN R DN (8 002,592 0487 (16452581447 (134 D34 230 235 (272,615 M46 07T)
HihiE % nEHNE g8 1M lm 19.765,74 1.722 137 351 549 pal TSI 03H
ol T Ey ] 515,117,135 6210218916 8,555 400 927
SHFHE 611935 350,360 10,15 763 SEISAN
T it =i 34 040 701 25541805 STRNETALG 423 200 200
BIEHE R LEE (134 331 3297 (191854062 (2557 2700557 (317921 207
FELIREN TR L EE (13 2312180 (16,863 053 (229 185 280) (70 420 T2
Sl &AM LEE (23 305 0147 (52332068 (38T 37 155) (6T 142 367
EABELEE (37 5TL176) (52585 665 (622 554 3860 (876 282 32
T mithEXBRADIHE (17 3412207 (27 339 070 (28T 344 015 (433 123 2037
EEXEFBH-LDF - F¥F 23270 ZA0 445 Tl 3515 #6856 5073 635 056 58214 500 44
HESEH-_ LDty 2270
T o S e 413118 550 5362337,100 76 505 075 424 88853 505 747
SEHIEEDEEICE ST L (4584 37 P16) (34750500 434) (75 870 740 355 (140,440 242 321)
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HESHTEAIhExR> |-
T¥>2a70-— (260 S22 4657 (3516000 334) (4 321 027 SN (58275 M3 [I74)
Wk LR EFE S i 0. Gl 99 F0 296 (3575475 1 .50 708 305 (60,5202 70
FRELMDIRER LFREFE SN 36 F02 445 40377 5 606 502 514 67 405 154
FEFNREELIFRERFTR 13620 741 IOA02445 225 AW ELE 06 502 514
Hah LUrdsATHES0AR
HEES L6220 741 3602445 2257 20 318 06 503 514
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CSOP FTSE AS0 ETF

CSOPETF
1.
CSOP ETF 2012 7 25
104 1
SFC 2018 12
31 CSOP FTSE  A50 ETF CSOP CES  A80 ETF
CSOP SZSE ChiNext ETF CSOP  CSI 300 ETF CSOP MSCI A
ETF  CSOP MSCI A ETF  ICBC CSOP S&P ETF
CSOP ETF 7
CSOP MSCI T50 ETF 2018 6 29 CSOP ETF
2012 8 23
CSOP
JOR TSE
JDR 2013 2 27 TSE
CSOP
HSBC
FTSE  A50
FTSE  A50
CSRC QFlI
RQFII SAFE
QFlI RQFII
RQFII
RQFI|
RQFII RQFII
RQFII
RQFII
CSOP CES  A80 ETF CSOP SZSE
ChiNext ETF CSOP  CSI 300 ETF CSOP MSCI A ETF
CSOP MSCI A ETF  ICBC CSOP S&P ETF CSOP

ETF

132/339



EDINETOOOO
OO00D0O00o0O00D0bDO000DO0Odnoo(E27318)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CSOP FTSE AS0 ETF
CSOPETF

(@)

HKICPA
HKFRS
HKFRS
3
2018 1 1
HKFRS 9 2018 1 1
HKAS 39
SPPI
SPPI
HKFRS 9 ECL
HKFRS 9 2(b)
HKFRS 15 2018 1 1
HKAS 18 HKAS 11
HKFRS 15
HKFRS 15

2018 1 1
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CSOP FTSE AS0 ETF
CSOPETF

(@)

2018 1

2018 1 1

(b)
(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)
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CSOP FTSE AS0 ETF
CSOPETF

(b)

v)

(Vi)

(©)

12

30 90

(d)
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CSOP FTSE AS0 ETF
CSOPETF

(€)

(f)

(9)

(h)

(i)

()

(k)
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(m)
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CSOP FTSE AS0 ETF

CSOPETF
2.
()
3,
2018 12 31
2018 12 31 2.86% 448,585,791 1
2
2018 12 31
2018 12 31 8(d)
2017 12 31
4, 1
2012 7 25
1
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CSOPFTSE AS0ETF
CSOPETF
4, 1
2018 2017 12 31
2018 2017
1,495,000,000 1,735,500,000
424,500,000 486,500,000
(355,500,000) (727,000,000)
1,564,000,000 1,495,000,000
Nz N1TE N MN17F
AT AT P i) P i)
10 S SR B
CRFET AR &R LR 100572 129131 166 214
5.
0184 0174 0185 0175
AET AET gF5 gF5
pElEIIEIhIEERE.
BEICEIT DA E Ml (4,131,134 8573 3,261 447 206 (7, 452,504, 5A) 54042, 190,145
fEoEfllcLoEERAE SEEA43.511 2191734718 QE0102977 36,317,572 74
[3.552.451 346] SA55 0 S0 (58,652 201 805 50,380,052, 250
6.
104
26A 1A
A A 10%
A
2018 2017 12 31
W1EF 201TH W1EF W17H
AT AL Jof it o~
AR IR AR E B R R TR 37,550,526 52 859 674 £22 212 216 273,58 TOE
FIEHR A a3 &R R Rt 20,650 23,991 342,171 397,531
e (ZER EBH 37,571,176 52 BRE3.663 fid2 554 386 876,282 320
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CSOP FTSE AS0 ETF

CSOPETF
7.
SFC
2018 2017 12 31
(@)
0.99%
(b)
1%
2018 1 1
11 30 2017 12 31
40,000
2018 12 1
200 0.16%
1,000 0.14%
1,000 0.12%
1,000 0.10%
0.08%
2018 12 1 0.08%
HSBC
2018 1 1 11 30
2017 12 31 1 120

2018 12 1 1 100
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CSOPFTSE AS0ETF
CSOPETF
7.
(c)
A13EF 1M 2134 20174
AT N B B
F
5 LB RIS 13,1 47,055,573 14,150,277, 2724 71050 T4 470,094,251
HSECIRIT HE Mfait 2435.270,141 5,141 517,550 A0 352 A, T3 25,104,045 204
15552725, 104 19,291 794212 258,199.1%.915 319665040035
A Hm
g LB RIT S 5.5, T2 544587 1,400 550 05 29,719,707
HSBCERTT HE DR\ 4B 265,949 31,187,858 2 272,775 516,752,807
19,222,741 W B3 2257 210818 F06,302.514
2018 12 31 616,279 2017 351,144
2017 12 31 163,172,122
2018 12 31
8.
FTSE  A50
(@
@®

FTSE A50
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CSOPFTSE  ASBOETF
CSOPETF
8.
@
@i
12 31
20185
i E M ELC
L E{hE IAIE (B T G0
AET g #F5

B [E RIS R - EER
=i 251,191,126 4.162,236,952 1.60
THERT 3,279,491,218 54,341 160 452 20,89
A 9,501,142,790 157 434,035,450 60.52
e~ JLREAF 322042179 5,336,238 006 205
BARM - - 1,534,072,192 25,419 576 221 9.77
i@ A= 270175 420 4625,036,350 172
FO Y- 46,706,158 773,921,038 0.3
ESEE 141,204,657 2,340 703,166 0.9
LmEE 226,693,955 2.756,318,834 1.45
15,582,325,704 258,199,136,915 0026
0175
R EELC
e E{hE IaIE fli{E T G0

AL 534

H [E] B2 HhE - EER
=i 328,856,223 5,449,147 615 1.70
TEER RS 3,650,080, 496 60,496, 746 219 1201
A 11,985,220 960 152, 595,260,536 £2.08
.77 333,359 0644 3,352,059,690 1 6%
HEFRE - -2 1,989 726 5355 32070763216 1031
BE-H= 330,420,083 5.475.060,775 171
TR AT T 285,516,803 4.731,013,426 1.48
ESEE 174,281,079 2 227 837 479 00
IR 223,364,540 3,701,150,428 1.16
19,201 704212 319,665,040,035 FR53

FTSE  A50 50
2017 50 50 FTSE  AS50
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CSOPFTSE  AS0ETF
CSOPETF
8.
@
0]
10%
2018 2017 12 31 FTSE  AS0
10% 2017  10% 1,588,417,089
2017 1,982,221,136 FTSE  A50 10%
2017 10%
(i)
2018 2017 12 31
(iii)
(b)
2018 2017 12 31
HSBC 86,356,792 2017 5414,587
13,147,055,563 2017 14,150,277,262
HSBC S&P A 2017 A
2018 2017 12 31 HSBC
HSBC 49,865,949 2017
31,187,858 2,435,270,141 2017 5,141,517,550
HSBC Al 2017 Al
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(b)

2018

(©)
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CSOP FTSE AS0 ETF

CSOPETF
8.
(©

1 BFE  1xAbem AER s ALLE &5
A BT Y-t AT AT

2018512 A310 Mz
L B 32 SREN 13,383,370 ; ; 13,583,730
F 0 F IR 540,741 ; ; 540,741
FH- T A A - 7.10%, 226 - 7,108,526
F ot - 7580 E3ESM 26,504
M EoRLE RS 13,924080 7,106,506 63E5M 21759710

201712 A31H Bz
EMF 1 = TR 25,766,066 ; ; 25,766,066
AL~ B 1 SR 16,673,350 ; ; 16,673,350
FHo -~ ZF T EREN 1462 248 - - 1462343
FET A LE ; 5,615,358 ; 5615352
F ot ] 2,520 T2 728,762
BH EORLE LS 43,902,264 5,621,878 T, 200 50,250,384
l#BFH xR BAESR Ix ALAE &
F e 2 B g e

2018512 A31H Rz
E T AARE = i 221,761 977 ; ; 21,761,927
FfL o = EL ERA 2080072 - - 2.5%0,078
FEF AL H ; 117,793,247 ; 117,793,247
F ot g - 1,457,529 10585314 12,045,142
B EoRLE RS 20,7206 119,251,075 10585314 60,558,705

2017512 A31H Az
EMF 1~ F-DFHE 226,945 714 ; ; 26,343,714
LB IR ERA MR AIN - - eI A0
F £ Z ELERE 24.27,391 - - 24,295,701
FHI T A AH ; 53,112,762 ; 93,1272
F ot - 41756 12053850 12075,586
B EoRL RIS T27.460 514 o3, 154,518 1205850 B2 A4E, 563

2018 12 31

10% 1 2017 1
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CSOP FTSE AS0ETF
CSOPETF
8.
(©
1 1A F3& 10A B 120A H\E 4L &
A FT AT A BT A BT
20184F 12ZA 310 B &
Rt 15,71 8,548,445 6787 1,383 200 15,719,938, 452
01T 12ZAIH R G
WS 19353,997,575 2443 1,383,200 15 355,353,218
IBEES: 10A tE120A B L =H
AFF 8&F5 AFEH S#FE
20184F 12ZA 310 | &
BELH H0A56.547, 734 112451 22919624 0479579518
01T 1ZAIH R G
BEEE 20,595,779 518 40481 22,919,524 520,718 579 522
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CSOP FTSE AS0 ETF
CSOPETF

(d)

2018 2017 12 31
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CSOP FTSE AS0 ETF

CSOPETF
8.
(d)
L= )1 Lo~ L2 Lo~ )3 =H
A 8T AT AT A EaT
I015sF 12HIIHR %
Wik
7
— ¥ o aE & 15155753913 445 585,791 - L5, SRR 325 04
A 15135.739.915 448, 585,791 - 15, 582 05, 7
WITE1ZHIIHR #
Vi
7
- B 12291754 812 - - 19,291 794,812
wEkas 19291754 312 - - 12,291 794 512
L= )l L )12 L~ )5 =H
= 5 = e J=F- o =
WI1FEFE12HIIHR &
ik
1o
- NS 250,766,000, 358 7.475,066,557 - 29, 199,136,915
EESST 2507066 00,352 A6 06 A5T - 193 135915
01T 1ZHIIH R i
Nk
7
- B 319565, 040,055 - - S19 565, HO0ES
EESSH 319665040035 - - 319,655, M0,055
1
2
2018 2017 12 31 2
2018 12 31 1 448,585,791
2.86% 2

2018 12 31

2017 12 31
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2017 12 31 3

448,585,791 1

2017 12 31
12 31 168,414,838 2
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CSOPETF
EiF S idE

1535 iciF:Y . 1I8SED17 i B

NTFEERERTEE
1,495 000,000 003N, 1T &F00 275 B

2018 12 14 2017 2017

12 18
1,495,000,000 1 0.27 2017
2017 2017 12 29
2018 2017 12 31
SFC
SFC 10%
10%
2018 2017 12 31
2018 2017 12 31
10% FTSE A50
A CNY1
2018 12 31 FTSE AS0
2017 35.38% 1
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N18FR12751H 201812510
T EREE T EREE
AET &3
413,775,000 £.556,251.750
N17FR12A51H 2017%12H51H
T EREE T EREE
A BT 835
403,650,000 f658, 480,500
1,532,500,000 2017
0.27 2018 12 27
1 2017 1
% %
2017 2018 2017
12.09 11.50 12.08
19.36%
22.27% 2017 30.35%
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CSOP FTSE AS0 ETF

CSOPETF
12.
2018 2017 12 31
13.
FTSE A50
FTSE
A50
2018 12 31 1,383,200 2017 1,383,200
2018 12 31
10%
1 2017 1
14.

2019 4 29
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CSOP FTSE AS0 ETF

CSOPETF

2018 12 31
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LB&EE (02604)
chE (092604
0EF AT - 003 — - A4 L0 AR oy 1431330 166,754 483 03 11 0
oh [ = 330 T T AVEE BT L 158101 703 497 166,151 85 M. 17
= i kAt AR S T 6,35 B 36 L 350,904 302 51579 116
4 F=EfTatEE B P o 45786 026 256 B50 806 4 256 163 671 154
o EE fTatEEn B o 75079 0&T 274 4,04 4 544 S04 5] 175
ZEEREfTAEE AN o 72162550 417 f03, 533 6023 335 042 166
iR T AR LB P ey 16430 426 182 957 177 3 048 170,423 117
= LR B 0 BRE S e 12033 451 135 57 431 2 (I3 T 350 07
ISR TAYEEERE P o1 9520 542 5 5al054 896 §52.778 03
oh[E=F 1B I a R B R Y ipE17IT 520,153 043 157 f04 035
ob EiE 3R fTA kA S T 324 307 206 J09 093 3425 160571 132
o ElH AR T A B L ol 30220 f41 125 p40 672 3 179 529 065 lla
hELL AR b oM B Ty 525 TE 107 143 202 177537270 0
R TAtE AN o 423858 305 1068 185 156 17 599 220 361 630
B0 TEEDHEY o TABILE 122 554,250 212 812,191 02
oh B E S50 fTa sk A S 1 00EET 016 571211750 0 AG4 OTE T Y
op E 3 (Rhe S bt EhESE o 065 134 257 Ja4 403 4 270 496 £T2 14
o[BG ihfE T A+ B o 4447 T36 173 M1 067 2552 SE4 A0 1.11
o Elb #5F Fa sk B 2 o 18,536 147 129 557 G5 7 2146 556,242 nas
oh E# i athE B P o 13584 401 143 J40 430 2 464 T8 04 05
ob [Elve FEHE B o 58 B S o1 7133 p36 128 123 605 2 155 P09 f26 0z
hERRS T {2t B v 60,562 477 345 206,119 570 P65 302 230
o [E15 &3 86,8 15 AHFE B ol 2743 367 141 04 557 2340 703,166 0w
A1 EhE 3 AV ERE P Cn 1EIWZF 555 251,700 0 200 533 308 e
o BRI TE AV B L 14275 478 2 fE 055 3756 318,554 145
o S EE 2 atFE I ERE P o 28019 100 445 385,01 7 433 66 557 286
B G NET BEIE EHE At TR AR, 791 205 337571 6T (47751 nzr
o EP B atEE T P o1 26844 50 242 159,104 401244 553 15
198 L S SR et ad EHEA S o 073 J67 66 205,170 1110 109 567 043
W T3 AR R AT B o 4000 267 46 706,158 P73 1S 0
B S hEE S5 AV BHE A 0 15337 012 547 377 058 0 70 52 764 40
E #FE TEE & atFE 1B A Hy 11921 756 182 41,302 3 156 366,574 116
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CSOP FTSE AS0 ETF

CSOPETF

2018 12 31

FHIE & 3F il 2 F i WS
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L imil R R AR T A YR B S ol 1 PATEET 08107 137 £ 410335260 M
B AL S 8 2 o 6 345755 TAETIAM 5 ZAD 030 77 ans
EEonsst 15 2325 T4 253 190 136915 e
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CSOP FISE CHINA ASDETF
(A SUB-FUND OF CSOF ETF SERIES)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As a3 December 2018
2018 2017
Noges RME HME
ASSETS
MNON-CURRENT ASSETS
Deposil teserve 1,383,200 1,383,200
CURRENT ASSETS
Investments Tich.Bial 15,582,325, 704 19,291,794, 812
Imterest receivable 6,787 2443
Amourds due from brokers - 25,600,318
Bank balances Plel 136,222,741 36,602,445
15,718,555,232 19,354,000,01 %
Total assets 15,719,933 432 19.355.383,213
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Amonnts due to participating dealers - 25,766,066
Management fee payable e 13,383,339 16,673,350
Trustee fee payable Tk 540,741 1462848
License fee payvable 7,108,826 5,619,358
Ciher accounts payable 726,804 728,762
Total liabilities 21,759,710 50,250,384
EQUITY
Net assets attributable to unitholders o 15698,178,722 19,305,132,834

The financial statements on pages 9 1o 29 were approved by the Trustee and the Manager on 29 April 2019 and were
signied on their behalf.

For amd on behalf of For and on behalf of
CSOP Asgsel Management Limited HSEC Institutional Trst Services (Asia) Limited
a5 the Manager as the Trustee

The accompanying netes form an infegral part af these firancial statements.

&
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CSOFP FISE CHINA ASDETF
(A SUB-FUND OF CSOF ETF SERIES)

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 December 2008

Notes
INCOME
Dividend income
Interest income Tie)
Met (loss)gain on investments 5
Cither income

Total net (lossyincome

EXPENSES

Management fee Flal
Trustee fee Ty
Tramsaction costs of investmens

Aundit fee

Safe custody amd bank charges

Legal and other professional fee

License fee

Other operating expenses

Total operating ex penses

Operating (lossyprofit

Taxatiom &

Total comprehensive income

The accompanyving notes form an infegral part of these fimancial sfaieme mis.

1o

156/339

EDINETOOOO
OO00D0O00o0O00D0bDO000DO0Odnoo(E27318)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Year ended Year emled

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

RAME RME

374,786,899 515,117,135

616,279 351,144

(3,538.491,346) 5453.232,522

34940, 701 25841 895

(3,128,147 A67T) 5.994,542,696
(151,041,314) (193,442, 586)
(12909111} (16,591,724}
(23.393914) (52.332068)
(740,420 (840,649)
(1,119,874 ) (1.279,00a40 )
(443,587} (8, 760)
(15,911,091} (19,554,252)
(613,758} (1.483465)
(206,173,069) (285,932 564)

(3.334,320,536)

(37.571.176)

5,708.610,132

(52.883,665)

(3.371,891,712)

5655726467




CSOFP FISE CHINA ASDETF
(A SUB-FUND OF CSOF ETF SERIES)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO UNITHOLDERS

For the year ended 31 December 2008

Note
Met assets altributable to utholders at the beginning
of the yvear
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Year ended
31 December
2018

RME

19,305,132,

Year emled
31 December
2017

RME

17.192,084, 767

Proceeds on issue of units
Payments on redemption of units

4,737.783,550
{4,559.070,950)

5,362,337, 100

(8.501,375,500)

Met increasze(decrease) from unit transactions

178.712.600

(3,139,038,400)

Distribition to unithalders g

Total comprehensive income for the year

(413,775,000)

(3.371,891,712)

(403,650,000)

5655726467

MNet assets attributable o unitholders at the end of
the year

15.698.178.722

19,305, 132,834

The ACCOmpanying noles _,ﬁ?mr for] fmrgmd Jrari q.l" these ﬁua.rrﬂ'ﬂf stedleme rils.
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CSOFP FISE CHINA ASDETF
(A SUB-FUND OF CSOF ETF SERIES)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 December 2048

OFERATING ACTIVITIES
Payments for purchase of investments
Proceeds from sale of investments
Dividend received

Interest received

Other income received

Management fee paid

Trustee fiee paid

Transaction costs paid

Taxaton paid

Other operating expenses paid

Net cash generated from operating activities
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds on issue of wils

Payments on redemption of umnits
Dristribution praid

Net cash nsed in finandng activities

Met increaseq{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginming of the vear

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Analysis of balances of cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances

Year ended
31 December
218

RAME

(8.092,592,048)
8,289,170,128
374,786,899
611,935
34,940,701
(154,331,325)
{13.831,218)
(23,393.914)
(37.571,176)
(17,341,220

Year emled
31 December
2017

RAME

(16,452,531.447)
19,765.741,722
515,117,135
350,369
25,841,895
(191,854,062)
(16,863.053)
{52,332,068)
(52,883 665)
{27.339,970)

360,448,762

4, 737,783,550
(4,584,837.016)
{413,775.000)

3.513.246,856

5.362.337.100
(8.475,609,434)
(403,650,000)

(260,828 466) (3,516,922,334)
99,620,296 (3.675.478)
36,602,445 40,277,923

136,222,741 36,602,445
136,222,741 36,602,445

The ACCOmpanying noles _,ﬁ?mr for] f:Hrgmd Jrari q.l" these ﬁua.rrﬂ'ﬂf stedleme rils.
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CHOFP FTSE CHINA ASO ETF
(A SUB-FUND OF CSOF ETF SERIES)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION

CSOP ETF Senes (the “Trust™) 15 an wmbrella unit trust governed by its trust deed dated 25 July 2002, as
amended, (the “Trust Deed”) and authorised by the Secunties and Futures Commission of Hong Kong (the
“BFCT) pursuant to Section 1041} of the Securities and Fatures Ordinance. The terms of the Trust Deed are
govemed by the laws of Hong Kong, As at 31 December 2018, the Trust has seven sub-funds which are CS0P
FTSE China AS0 ETF (the " Sub-Fund™), CSOP CES China AS0 ETF, CS0OP SZ8E ChiMNext ETF, CS0OP
China CS[ 300 Smant ETF, CSOP MSCI China A Inclusion Index ETF (Formerly known as CSOP MSCI
China A Intermational ETF), ICBC C50P S&P New China Sectors ETF and CS0P Hong Kong Dollar Money
Market ETF, The sub-funds of the Trust, CSOP MSCI TS0 ETF was terminated on 29 June 2018 and CSOP
Hong Kong Dollar Money Market ETF was launched on 29 June 2018. The date of inception of the Sub-Fund
was 23 Angust 2012, The Sub-Fund is liged on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. CSOP Asset
Management Limited, the manager of the Sub-Fund, applied and obiained approval to list Japan Depository
Receipt ("JDR") which represents units of the Sub-Fund on the Tokyo Stock Exchange (“TSE™). The JDR
which represents units of the Sub-Fund was listed on the TSE on 27 February 2013,

The manager and the trustee of the Sub-Fund are CSOP Asset Management Limited (the “"Manager™) and
HSBC Institdional Trust Services (Asia) Limited (the " Trustee” ) respectively.

The investment objective of the Sub-Fund 1= to provade investment results that, before deduction of fees and
expenses, closely cormespond to the performance of the undedying index, namely, FTSE China AS0 Index {the
“Underlving Index”). In order to achieve the investment objective of the Sub-Fund, the Manager will adopt a
full replication strategy by directly investing all, or substanhially all. of the assets of the Sub-Fund in index
securities constituting the Underlying Index in substantially the same weightings (ie. proportions) as these
index securities have in the Undedying Index. The Manager may also use a representative sampling strategy
inexceptional circumstances,

The Sub-Fumd has been using FTSE China AS0 net total retum index as its undarlying index.

Under current regulations in the People’s Republic of Clhina (“"PRC™ ), generally foreign investors can imvest in
the domestic securities market through cerain qualified foreign institutional investors that have obtained
status a5 a Qualified Foreign Institutional Investor (“QFIT) or a Renminbi Qualified Foreign Institutional
Investor (“ROFIF) from the China Securities Regulatory Commission (*CSRC™) and have been granted
quota(s) by the State Administration of Foreign Exchange (“SAFE") of the PRC to remit foreign freely
comvertible cumencies (in the case of a QFI) and Chinese Renminbi (“RME™) ({in the caze of a RQFID) into
the PRC for the purpose of investing in the PRC's domestic securities markets, Foreign investors can also
imvest in the domestic securities market through Shanghai/Shenzhen — Hong Kong Stock Connect Program
{*Stock Connect™ ).

The Sub-Fund obtaing exposure 1o securities issued within the PRC through the ROFIT quotas of the Manager
and the Stock Connect. The Manager has obtained ROQFII status in the PRC and the ROFII quotas have been
granted, on behalfof the Sub-Fund. To the extent that the Manager has, on behalf of the Sub-Fund, wilized its
entire ROFIT quota, the Manager may, subject to any applicable requirements, apply for an increase of the
ROFI quota. On the other hand, the Manager actively manages the RQFII quota obtained and may impose
limits on creation applications as it considers appropriate.

These financial statements are prepared for the Sub-Fund onty. The financial statements for C30P CES China
ARD ETF, CSOP SZSE ChiMNext ETF, CSOP China CSI 300 Smart ETF, CSOP MSCI China A Inclusion

Index ETF (Formerly known as CSOP MSCI Chima A Intemational ETF), ICBC CS0OP S&P New China
Sectors ETF and CSOP Hong Kong Dollar Money Market ETF have been prepared separately,
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CHOFP FTSE CHINA ASDO ETF
(A SUB-FUND OF CSOF ETF SERIES)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The poncipal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these fAnancial statements are sel out below,
These policies have been consistently applied to all the yvears presented, unless ofherwisze stated.

(a) Basls of preparation

The financial statements of the Sub-Fund have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRS") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountanis
("HEICPA”™). The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of investments al fair value through profit or loss.

The preparation of financial stalements in conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
acconnting estimates. It also requires the Trustee amd the Manager (together the “Management™) to
exercise their judgment in the process of applyving the Sub-Fund's accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Note 3.

HEFRS & "Financial Instrumenis’ became effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018, It addresses the classification, measurement and derecognition of financial assets and liabilities
and replaces the multiple classification and measurement models in HEAS 39,

Classification and measurement of debt assets is driven by the entity’s business model for managing
the financial asseis and the contractual cash flow chamacteristics of the financial assets. A debd
instnoment is measured at amortized cost if the objective of the business model is to hold the financial
assel for the collection of the contractual cash flows and the comtractual cash flows wnder the
instrument solely represent payvments of principal and interest (SPPI). A delt instrument is measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income if the objective of the business model is to hold the
financial asset both to collect contractual cash fows from SPP1 and to sell. All other debt ingmiments
must be recognised at fair value through profit or loss. An entity may however, at initial recognition,
irrevocably designate a financial asset as measured at fair value through profit or less if doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency. Denvative and equity
instruments are measured &t fair value throngh profit or loss unless, for equity instruments nod held for
trading. an irrevocable option is taken to measure ai fair value through other comprehensive income.
HKFRS 2 also introduces anew expected credit loss (ECL ) impairment model.

HKFRS 9 has been applied retrospectively by the Sub-Fund and did not result in a change to the
classification or measurement of financial ingruments as outlined in Note 2(b). The Sub-Fund's
invesiment portfolio continmes to be classified as fair valoe throngh profit or loss and other financial
assels which are held for collection continue to be measured af amortised cost. There was no material
impact on adoption from the application of the new impairment model.

HKFRES 15 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers' became effect for annual period beginning on
or after | January 2018. It addresses the recognition of revenue and replaces HKAS 18 *Revenue’ and
HEAS 11 *Construction Contracts”

HEFRS 15 has been applied retrospectively by the Sub-Fund The Sub-Fumd does not have revenue
from contracts with customers and only incurs gaing and income from mvestments. There was no
material impact on the financial statements of the Sub-Fund on adoption of HKFRS 15,

There are no other standards, amendments to standards or interpretations that are effective for anmal

periods beginming on 1 January 2018 that have a material effect on the financial statements of the Sub-
Fund.
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CHOFP FTSE CHINA ASDO ETF
(A SUB-FUND OF CSOF ETF SERIES)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)y

(a)

(b)

Basls of preparation (Continued)

MWew standards and amendments to standards effective afier 1 January 2018 that are relevant (o the
Sub-Fund but are not vert effective and have not been early adopted by the Sub-Fund

A& number of new standands, amendments to sandards and interpretations are effective for anmual

periods beginming after 1 January 2018, and have not been early adopted in prepanng these financial
statements. None of these are expected to have a material effect on the financial statements of the Sub-
Fund,

Investments
(1} Classification

The Sub-Fund classifies its investments based on both the Sub-Fund's business model for
managing those financial assets and the contractual cash flow characterstics of the financial
assets. The pomtfolio of financial assets is managed and performance is evaluated on a fair
value basis. The Sub-Fund is primarly focused on fair value information and uses that
information to assess the assets” performance and to make decisions. The Sub-Fund has not
taken the option to wrevocably designate any equity securities as fair value through other
comprehensive income, Consequently, all mmvestments are measured at far value through
profit or loss,

(1) Recogmion/derecogmtion

Purchases and sales of investments are accounted for on the trade date basis - the date on
which the Seb-Fund commits to purchase or sell the investments, Investments are
derecogmised when the rights o receive cash flows from the investments have expired or the
Sub-Fund has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

(11} M easurement

Investments are initially recognised at fair value. Transaction costs are expenszed as incurred in
the statement of comprehensive income,

Sub=equent to initial recognition, all investments are measured al fair value. Realised and
unrealized gams and losses on investments are recogrised in the statement of comprehensive
income in the yvear in which they anse,

(v Fair value estimation

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value of
financial assets and liabilities traded in active markets (such as publicly traded denvatives amd
trading securities) are based on quoted market prices at the close of trading on the reporting
date. The Sub-Fund utilises the last traded market price for both listed financial assets amd
liabilities where the last traded price falls within the bid-ask spread. In circumstances where
the last traded price 1= not within the bid-ask spread, the Management will determine the point
within the bid-ask spread that is most representative of fair value,

The fair value of financial assets that are nod traded inan active market (for example, over-the-
conmber denvatives) 18 detemmined by using broker quotes or valuation techmoues,
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CHOFP FTSE CHINA ASO ETF
(A SUB-FUND OF CSOP ETF SERIES)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continwed)
[113] Investments (Continued)

(v Transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy

Transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy are deemed to have ocowred at the
begimming of the reporting period.

(vi) Ofsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amoum reported in the statement of
financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and setde the liabality
simultaneousty. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and
must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of defanlt, insolvency or
bankmapiey of the company or the counterpany.

(<) Amounts due from particpating dealers’brokers

Amounts due from participating dealers represent the subscription receivable from the paricipating
dealers at the end of the reporting vear. The amounts are non-interest bearing and repayvable on demand,

Amounts due from brokers represent receivables for secunties sold that have been contracted for b
nat yved settled on the statement of financial position date.

These amounts are recognised imtially af far value and subsequently measured 2t amortised cost, At
each reporting date, the Sub-Fund shall measure the loss allowance on amounts due from panicipating
dealers'brokers at an amonnt equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk has increased
signi ficantly since irubial recognition, IF at the reporting date, the credit nsk has not increased
sigm ficantly since imitial recognition, the Sub-Fund shall measure the loss allowance ol an amount
equal to 12-month expected credit losses. Significant financial difficulties of the panticipating
dealers'brokers, probability that the panicipating dealers'brokers will enter bankruptey or financial
recrpamsation, and default in payments are all considered indicators that a loss allowance may be
required. If the credit risk increases to the point that it is considered to be credit impaired, interest
income will be calculated based on the gross carrying amount adjusted for the loss allowance. A
gigni ficant increase in credit @5k 15 defined by Management as any contractual payiment which is more
than 30 days past due. Any contractual payment which is more than 90 days past due is considered
credit impaired.

() Amounts due to participating dealers'brokers

Amounts due to panticipating dealers represent the redemption payable to the participating dealers at
the end of the reporting vear, The amounts are non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.

Amounts due to brokers represent payvables for securities purchased that have been contracted for bt
not yet delivered on the statement of financial position date.

These amounts are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amonised cost.
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CHOFP FTSE CHINA ASO ETF
(A SUB-FUND OF CSOP ETF SERIES)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(e} Dividend Income and Interest income

Drividend income is recorded on the ex-dividend date with the corresponding foreign withholding taxes
recorded as an expense,

Interest income is recognized on atime-proportionate basis using the effective interest method.
n Distributions to unitholders

Dristribations Lo unitholders are recognised in the statement of changes in net assets attributable 1o
unitholders when they are approved by the Mamager,

(£ Other income'expense

Other income/expense mainly represents the difference between the proceeds received from/paid to
participating dealers and cost of investment purchased/sold.

(hy Transaciions cosis
Transactions costs are cods incurred to acquire/dispose financial assets or liabilities at fair valoe
through profit or loss, They include fees and commmissions paid fo agents, brokers and dealers.
Transactions costs, when incurred, are immediately recognised in the statement of comprehensive
INCOME A3 AN exXPense.

{i) Expenses
Expenses are accounted for on an accmal basis,

(1] Cash and cash equivalents

Cash amnd cash equivalents include cash in hand, cash al bank, demand deposits, other shof-4emm
highly liguid investments with onginal maturities of three months or less and bank overdrafts,

(k) Foreign currendes translation
cli d preseniation ¢

Items inclided in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the prfary economic
enviromment in which the Sub-Fund operates (the " functional curency™). The Sub-Fund invests in A-
Shares in the PRC and the performance of the Sub-Fund is measured and reported to the unitholders in
EME. The Manager considers Renminbi as the currency that most faithfully represents the economic
effects of the undedying (ransactions, evenis and conditions. The financial Aatements are presented in
RMEB, which is the Sub-Fund's functional and presentation cumency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using, the exchange rales

prevailing i the dates of the transactions. Forelgn currency assets and liabilities are translated into the
functiomal cumency using the exchange rate prevaling at the reporting date.
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CHOFP FTSE CHINA ASO ETF
(A SUB-FUND OF CSOP ETF SERIES)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuwed)

(k) Foreign currendes translation {Continued)

Tranzactions and balances (Continued)

Foreign exchange gains and losses arsing from translation are included in the statement of
comprehensive income.

Foreign exchange gaing and losses relating to the financial assets and habilities camied @ Fair value
through profit or loss are presented in the statement of comprehensive income within “net gain/f{loss)
o investmens”

n Redeemable units

The Sub-Fund issues redeemable units, which are redeemable at the holder's option. These wnits
represent puttable financial instruments of the Sub-Fund. The Sub-Fund classifies its puttable financial
instruments #s equity in accordance with HKAS 32 {Amendment), “Financial instruments:
Presentation” as those puttable financial instruments meet all the following crtena:

# the pultable fnancial ingruments entitle the holder to a pro-rata share of net asset valoe;

+« (he puttable financial ingmments are the most subordinated wnits in issue amd onit feateres are
identical;

# there are no contractual obligations to deliver cash or another financial asset; and

o the total expected cash flows from the puttable financial irstrument over its life are based
substantially on the profit or loss of the Sub-Fund,

Units are issued and redeemed at the holder's option at prices based on the Sub-Fund's net asset value
per unit at the time of issue or redemption, The Sub-Fund's net asset value per umt is calculated by
dividing the net asseis sttnbutable to watholders with the total number of owtstanding wmis,

In accordance with the Prospectus of the Sub-Fund, investment positions are valued based on the last
traced market price for the purpose of determining the net asset value per wnit for subscriptions and
redemptions of the Sub-Fund.

(m} Taxation

The Sub-Fund currently incurs withholding taxes imposed by PRC on investment income. Such
income is recorded gross of withhelding taxes in the statement of comprehensive income.
Withholding taxes are included as tasation in the statement of comprehensive income.

Dreferred income tax is provided, using the liability method, on temporary differences ansing between
the tax bases of asseis and liabilities and their camrying amounds in the financial statements. However,
the deferred income (ax i3 not accounted for iF it anses from initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a tran=action that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss,
Dreferred income tax is determined using tax rates {and laws) that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the statement of financial position date and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the defemed income tax hability is settled,

Dreferred income tax assels are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be mvailable against which the temporary di fferences can be utilised,

Dreferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right 1o offset
current tax assets against cwment tax labilities and when the deferred income taxes assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation anthority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an infention to settle the balances on a net basis,
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CHOFP FTSE CHINA ASO ETF
(A SUB-FUND OF CSOP ETF SERIES)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(m) Establishment cosis
Estabilishment costs are recognised as an expense in the yvear in which they are incurred.
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The Manager makes estimates and assumptions concerning the futwre, The resulting accounting estimates will,
by defirntion, seldom équal the related actual results, Estimates are conbmually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed o be
reasonable under the circumstances, The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment 1o the carrying amounts of assets and labilities within the next financial year are cutlined
below,

In prepanng these financial statements, the Manager has made cenain assumptions and used various estimates
conceming the fair value of the secunties that are swspended from trading which is dependent on what might
happen in the future. The resulting accounting estimates may not equal the related actual results,

Falr value of securities that are suspended from trading

As @t 31 December 2018, there were listed equities which have been suspended for trading mainly due to
business restrocturing. Management made its judgement in determining the fair values of these investments
and imvolved a higher degree of subjectivity. Management judgement in determiming the Fair values of the
suspended investments includes factors such as the duration of saspension period, the relevant market
information and news of the suspended listed equities, the price movement of comparable lised equities/index
during the suspension period and, if applicable, the market prices of the suspended listed equities upon
resumption of trading after vear end.

Ag @l 31 December 2018, the Sub-Fund held one histed equaty of RMBA448, 585,791, représented 2.86% of the
net asset value of the Sub-Fund, was suspended for trading and it was classified as level 2. Such suspended
imvestment held by the Sub-Fund has resumed trading subsequent to the year ended 31 December 2018,
Having considered the factors above, Management has based on their best estimation and concluded using the
latest mvailable price before suspension as the Fair value of such suspended investment as at 31 December 2018,
Refer to Note 3(d).

As at 31 December 2017, there was no investment held by the Sub-Fund which had been suspended for trading.

NUMBER OF UNITS IN ISSUE AND NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO UNITHOLDERS PER
UNIT

The Sub Fund's capital is represented by the units in the Sub-Fund, and shown as “net assets atiributable to
umitholders™ in the gatement of financial position. Subscriptions and redemptions of units during the vear ane
shown in the statement of changes in net assets attributable to unitholders. In order to achieve the investment
objectives, the Sub-Fund endeavors to invest its capital in accordance with the investment policies, whilst
maintaiming suffcient hopadity to meet redemption requests,

In accordance with the provisions of the Trust Deed dated 25 July 2012, as amended, and the Prospectus of the
Sub-Fund, investments are staled at the last traded price on the valuaiion day for the puorpose of determining
net assel value per unit for subscriptions and redemptions and for varions fee calculations,

Ag stated in Mote 2(1), redeemable units of the Sub-Fund are classified as equity and they are carried a0 the

redemption amount that would be payable st the reporting date if the unitholder exercised the rght to redeem
the units in the Sub-Fund.
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CHOFP FTSE CHINA ASO ETF
(A SUB-FUND OF CSOP ETF SERIES)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NUMBER OF UNITS IN ISSUE AND NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO UNITHOLDERS PER

UNIT (Continued)

The movements of the redeemable units for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

2018 2017

Units Units
Mumber of units in issue at the beginming of the vear 1,495, 000, (00 1,735, 500,000
Units izsued 424,500 000 486,500,000
Unitz redeemed (355,500,000} {TZ7,000,000%
Number of units in issue at the end of the year 1.564,000,000 1. 495,000,000

2018 2017

FME RMB
Met assets attnbutable to unitholders per it
{per statement of financial position) 10,0372 129131
NET (LOSSYGAIN ON INVESTMENTS

2018 2017

RME RME

Met fair value change in unrealised gain/loss in value of
mvestments
Met realised gain on sale of mvestments

TAXATION

(4.131,134,857)
592,643,511

3,261,447 806
2,191,784,716

{3,538,49] 346}

5453,232,522

No provision for Homng Kong profits tax has been made for the Sub-Fumd as it was authorised a5 a collectivie
investment scheme under Section 104 of the Hong Kong Secunities and Futures Orndinance and is therefore
exempt from profits tax under Section 26A11A) of the Hong Kong Inland Revenue Ordinance.

ERC tax

The Sub-Fund invests in A-Shares listed in the PRC and is subjected to 10%% withholding tax on dividend
income derived from A-Shares. Withholding tax was charged on dividend income received from A-Shares
during the year,

The taxation of the Sub-Fund for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 represents:

2018 2017
RME RALR
Withholding tax on dividend income 37,550,526 52,859,674
Withholding tax on interest income 20,650 23.991
Taxation AT571.176 52,883,665
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CHOFP FTSE CHINA ASO ETF
(A SUB-FUND OF CSOP ETF SERIES)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
TRANSACTIONS WITH THE TRUSTEE, MANAGER AND CONNECTED PERSONS

The following is a summary of significant related pany transactions and transactions entered into during the
year between the Sub-Fund and the Trustee, the Manager and the Connected Persons of the Manager.
Comnected Persons of the Manager are those as defined in the Code on Unit Trusts and Mutual Funds
established by the Securities and Fulures Commission of Hong Kong (the “5FC Code™). All transactions
entered into during the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, between the Sub-Fund and the Manager and
its Connected Persons were carfied oul in the nommal course of business and on normal commercial terms, To
the best of the Manager™s knowledge, the Sub-Fund does not have any other transactions with the Connected
Persons of the Manager except for those disclosed below.

(a) Management fee

The Manzger is entitled to receive a management fee, currently at the rate of 0.99%% per annum of the
net asset value of the Sub-Fund accrued daily and calculated as at each dealing day and payable
monthly in arrears,

(b} Trustee fee and Registrar's fee

The Trustee is entitled to receive a trustee fee of up to 1% per annum of the net asset value of the Sub-
Fund which accrued daily and calculated as &t each dealing day and payable monthly in amears. For
the penod from 1 January 2018 to 30 November 2018 and the vear ended 31 December 2017, the
trustee fee was calculated as a percentage per annum of the net asset valoe of the Sub-Fund at the rate
as follows, subject to a monthly minimum of RMB40,000;

Prior to 1 December 2008:

Trustee fipe percentage per anmmm

For first EMB204 mallion 0, 16%
For next RAMEB 1,000 million 0.14%
For next RMB 1,000 million 0,12%
For next RMEBE 1,000 million 0.10%
Thereafter 0.08%

Effective fram | December 20138, the trustee fee is calculated at the rate up to 0.08% per anfiim of the
nel asset value of the Sub-Fumd.

The Trustee fee is inclusive of fees payable to The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Limited {the “Custodian™) and HSBC Bank (China) Company Limited (the “PRC Custodian”™ ).

The Trustee, acting as the Registrar. is also entitled to a fee of RMB120 per participating, dealer per
transaction for the period from | January 2018 to 30 November 2018 and for the year ended 31

December 2017, Effective from 1 December 2018, the Trustee is entitled to a fee of RMB 100 per
panticipating dealer per transaction,

The Trustee shall also be entitled to be reimbursed from the Sub-Fund for all out-of-pocket expenses
incurred.
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CHOFP FTSE CHINA ASO ETF
(A SUB-FUND OF CSOP ETF SERIES)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
THANSACTIONS WITH THE TRUSTEE, MANAGER AND CONNECTED PERSONS (Continued)
(<) Finandal assets

The investments and bank balances of the Sub-Fumnd held with related parties of the Trustee are:

2008 2017
RAE RAE
Investments

The Hongkong and Shanghm Banking Corporation Limited 13, 147,055,563 14,150,277,262
HSBC Bank (China) Compeany Limited 2435270141 5,141,517,550
15,582,325,704 19,291,794,812

Bank balances
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited 86,356,792 5.414,587
HSBC Bank (China) Company Limited 49,865,949 31 187,858
136,222 741 36,602,445

Interest income amounting to RMBE&16.27% was earned on these bank balances for the year ended 31
December 2018 (2017 RMB351,144),

As at 31 December 2017, the Sub-Fund invests in Huatai Securities Co Ltd, a connected person of the
Mamager, of EMB163,172,122. As a1 31 December 2018, the Sub-Fund did not invest in Huata
Securities Co Lid,

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The objective of the Sub-Fund is to provide investment results that, before deduction of fees and expenses.
closely correspond o the performance of the FTSE China A50 Index. The Sub-Fund's activities may expose it
to a varety of risks including but not limited to market risk (including market price nisk, interest rate sk and
currency nsk), credit and counterparty nsk and liquidity risk which are associated with the markets in which
the Sub-Fund invests.

The following is a summary of the main fsks and risk management policies.
(@)  Market risk
(i) Market price risk

Market price risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will Quctoste as a result of
changes in market prices {ather than those arising from interest rate nsk or currency risk), whether
those changes are cansed by factors specific to the individual instrument or factors affecting all
instruments in the market,

The Sub-Fumnd is designated to track the performance of the FTSE China AS0 Index, therefore the
exposures (o market risk in the Sub-Fund will be substantially the same as the tracked index. The
Manager manages the Sub-Fund's exposures to markel rigk by ensuring that the key characteristics
of the pontfolio, such as security weight and industry weight, are closely aligned with the
characteristics of the tracked index.
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CHOFP FTSE CHINA ASO ETF
(A SUB-FUND OF CSOP ETF SERIES)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {Continued)
(@) Market risk (Continued)

(i) Market price risk (Continued)

As at 31 December, the Sub-Fund’s investments were concentrated in the following industries:

2018 2017
%a of net %5 of net
Fair value  asset value Fair value aszet value
RME RMEB
Listed equities in PRC - by
industry

BEasic materials 251,191,126 1.60 328,356,223 1.70
Consumer goods 3279491218 2089 3.650,980,495 1591
Financiale O 500, 148,790 G052 11,985,220 950 62.08
Health care 322042179 205 323359064 1.68
Industrials 1,534,072,192 Q77 1,989 786,555 10,31
il & gas 270,175,429 1.78 330,420,083 1.71
Technology 46,706,158 0.30 285,516,803 148
Telecommumcations 141,804,657 .90 174,281.07%9 090
Utilities 226,693 955 145 223,364, 540 1.16
15582325704 9026 19,291,794, 812 9993

The Sub-Fund held 50 ot of 50 (2017: 50 ont of 500 constituent securities comprsing the FTSE
Chira A50 Index. The Sub-Fund is therefore exposed to substamtially the same market price risk as
the FTSE China A50 Index,

Sensitivity analysig in the event of a possible change in the index by 10% as estimated by the
Manager

Az at 31 December 2018 and 2017, if the FTSE China A50 Index were to increasze by 10% [2017:
10%a) with all other variables held constant, this would increase the operating profic for the year by
approximately RMB1,588,417,089 (2017 RMB 1,982,221,136). Conversely, if the FTSE China
AS0 Index were to decrease by 10% (2017: 1095, this would decrease the operating profit for the
wear by an equal amount.

(i} Interest rate risk

Interest rate nsk anses from the effects of Oectuations in the prevailing levels of market intenest
rates on the fair value of financial assets amd liabilities and fiuture cash fow.

As ot 31 December 2008 and 2017, interest rate risk anises only from bank balances. As the bank
balances held by the Sub-Fund is shon term in mature and interest arising from these interest
bearing assets are immaterial, the Mamager considers that changes in their fair valoe and fiture
cash flows in the event of a change in market interest rates will not be material. As a result, the
Manager considers sensitivity analysis of interest rate risk is not necessary to be presented.
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CHOFP FTSE CHINA ASO ETF
(A SUB-FUND OF CSOP ETF SERIES)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {Continued)
(@) Market risk (Continued)

({ify Currency risk

Currency risk is the sk that the value of financial instruments will Auctuate due to changes in
foreign exchange rates, The Sub-Fund is not exposed o cormency risk arising from balances and
transactions in foreign currencies as the majority of ils assets and liabilities are denominated in
EME, the Sub-Fund's functional and presentation currency. As a result, the Manager considers
sensitivity analysis of currency nisk is not necessary to be presenfed.

(b} Credit and counter party risk

Credit and counterparty rigk is the risk that an issuer or counterparty will be unable or unwilling to
meet a commitment that it has entered into with the Sab-Fund.

The Sub-Fund limits its to credit and counterparty risk by carrying out the majority of its
investmenl transactions contractual commitment activities with well-established broker-dealers,
banks and regulated exchanges with high credit ratings.

Al transactions in listed securities are settled or paid for upon delivery wsing approved and reputable
brokers. In addition, the Sub-Fund places bank balances with reputable fimancial ingitutions. As such,
the Mamager does not consider the Sub-Fund to be exposed to significant credit and counterparty risk.

Az at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Sub-Fund placed bank balances of RMBS6.,356,792 (2017:
REMES414,587) and investments of RMB 13,147,055,563 (2017: RMB14,150,277,262) with The Hong
Kong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited ("HSBC™). which is the custodian of the Sub-Fund.
The S&P credit rating of HSBC is A (2017: A},

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Sub-Fund placed bank balances of RMB49 365,949 (2017
RMB31,187.858) and investments of RMB2435,270,141 (2017 RMBS.141,517,550) with HSBC
Bank (China) Company Limited ("HSBC Chana™ ). which is the PRC custodian of the Sub-Fund. The
Moody's eredit rating of HSBC China is A1 {2017: Al).

The Sub-Fund measures credit nsk and expected credit losses using probability of defanlt, exposure at
defanlt and loss given default, Management consider both historical analysis and forward looking
information in determining any expecied credit loss, At 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017,
deposit reserve, interest receivables, amounts due from brokers and bank balances are held with
counterparties with high credit ratings and are due to be settled within 1 month. Management consider
the probability of defanlt to be close to 2ero as the counterparties havi a strong capacity Lo meet their
contractual obligations in the near term. As a resull, no loss allowance has been recognised based on
12-month expected credit losses as any such impairment would be wholly insigmficant to the Sub-
Fund,

The maximum exposure (o credit nsk as af 31 December 2008 and 2017 15 the camying amount of the
financial assets as shown on the statement of financial position,

(<) Liguidity risk

Liguidity risk is the nsk that the Sub-Fund may not be able to generate sufficient cash resources to
seftle e obligations in full as they fall due or can only do 80 on terms that are materally
disadvantageous.

The Sub-Fund is exposed to daily redemptions of umis in the Sub-Fund. The Sub-Fund invests the
majonty of its assels in securities that are traded in an active market which can be readily disposed of,
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CHOFP FTSE CHINA ASO ETF
(A SUB-FUND OF CSOP ETF SERIES)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

() Liguidity risk (Continued)
The table below analyses the Sub-Fund's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining pericd at the reporting date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts in the table are

the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances doe within 12 months equal their camrying balances,
as the impact of discounting is not significant.

Lessthan | month to less Over

1 momth than 3 months 3 months Total
RMEB RME RMEB RME

As at 31 December 2018
Management fee payable 13,383,339 - - 13,383,339
Trustee fee payable 540,741 - - 540,741
License fee payable - 7. 108,826 - T08,826
Other accounts payahle - 87,980 638,824 T804
Contractual cash outflow 13,924,080 7196806 638824 21.759,710
—_— —_— —_—

As at 31 December 2017

Amounts due to participating

dealers 25,766 066 - - 25,766 066
Management fee payabie 16,673,350 - - 16,673,350
Trustee fee pavable 1,462,348 - - 1462348
License fee payahle - 5619353 - 5619358
Other accounts payable - 2,520 726,242 728,762
Conftractual cash outflow 43,902,264 5621873 T6,242 50,250,354

Units are redeemed on demand at the umtholder s option, As at 31 December 2018, there was 1 (2017;
1 yumtholder holding more than 10% of the Sub-Fund's wts,

The Sub-Fund manages its hquidity nsk by investing in securities that it expects to be able to lquidate
within 7 days or less. The following table illustrates the expected liquidity of assets held:

Less than 1o 12 Mo stated

1 month months matirity Total
RME RAE RME RAME

As at 31 December 2018
Total assets 15, 718,548,445 6,787 1,383,200 157199358432

Asat 31 December 2017
Total assels 19,353,997,.575 2443 1,383,200 1%,355383.218
.3 | i pre e —ua o
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CHOFP FTSE CHINA ASO ETF
(A SUB-FUND OF CSOP ETF SERIES)

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
{d) Fair value estimation

The Sub-Fund classifies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the
sigmni ficance of the inputs vsed in making the measurements, The far value hierarchy has the following
levels:

s Cuoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Sub-Fund can
access at the megsurement date (level 1)

« Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or Lability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is. derived from prices) {level 2).

*  Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inpus) {level 3),

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is calegorised in its
entirety is determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant 1o the far value
measurement in its entirety. For this purpose, the significance of an input is assessed against the fair
value measurement in ifts entirety. If a fair valoe measurement uses observable inputs that requore
significant adjustment based on unobservable inputs, that measurement 15 a level 3 measurement.
Assessing the significance of a panticular input to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires
Judgment, considering Factors specific to the asset or lability,

The determination of what constitutes “observable” requires significant judgment by the Sub-Fund
The Sub-Fund considers observable data to be that market data that is readily available, regularly
distibuted or updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprictary, and provided by independent sowrces
that are actively involved in the relevant market.

The fallowing table analyses within the fair value hierarchy the Sub-Fund s financial assets (by class)
measured at fair value at 31 December 2018 and 2017:

Level 1 Lewel 2 Level 3 Taotal
RAuE RAE RME RMME

As at 3 December 2018
Assels
[mvestment
- Equily securilies 15133730013 448,585,701 - 15,582 325 704
Toial asseis 15.133,739.913 448,585,791 . 15,582,325.704
As at 31 December 2017
Assels
Investment
- Equuity secunties 19.291,794,812 - - 19,291,794,812
Total assels 19,291, 794,812 - - 19,291,794,812

Investments whose values are based on quoted market prices in active markets. and therefore classified
within level 1, include active histed equities. The Sub-Fund does not adjust the quoted pnce for these
instruments,
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CHOFP FTSE CHINA ASO ETF
(A SUB-FUND OF CSOP ETF SERIES)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(d}y Fair value estimation (Continued)

Financial instruments that trade in markets that are not considered (o be active but are valued based on
quoted market prices, dealer quodations or altemative pricing sources suppored by observable inputs
are classified within level 2. Management has used best estimation and assessed all available
information and congiders that the last traded price is the best estimation of the far value of level 2
investments as al 31 December 2018 and 2017,

As at 31 December 2018, one Disted equity investment held by the Sub-Fund amounted to
RMBA4E, 585,791, represented 2.806% of the net asset value of the Sub-Fund, was suspended for
trading due to business restucturing and was classified as level 2. Such investment has resumed
trading subsequent to the vear ended 31 December 2018,

Ag at 31 December 2017, there was no investment held by the Sub-Fund which has been suspended
for trading.

Investments classified within level 3 have significant unobservable inputs, as they trade infrequently
or do not trade. As at 31 December 20108 and 2017, the Sub-Fund did not hold any investmenis
classified in level 3,

During the vear ended 31 December 2018, the suspended equuty mvestment of RMB448,585.791 has
been transferred from level 1 to level 2 and classified as level 2 investments.

Durng the vear ended 31 December 2017, the equity investment of RMBI168,414,838 has been
tramsfemed from level 2 to level 1 related to secunties which were suspended for trading as @ 31
Drecember 2016 and has resumed trading duning the vear ended 31 December 2017,

Transfer between levels of the fair value hierarchy are deemed to have occurred @t the beginning of the
reporting penod.

The assets and liabilities included in the statement of financial position, other than investments, are
carried at amortised cost; their camying value are approximation of fair value, There are no other assets
and liabilities not carried at fair value but for which fair value is disclosed.

() Capital risk management

The Sub-Fund's capital is represented by the redeemable units outstanding, The Sub-Fund's objective
15 to provide investment results that correspond generally to the performance of the respective index.

The Manager may:

# Redeem and issue new units on a daily basis in accordance with the constitutive documents of the
Sub-Fund;

# Exercize discretion when determining the amount of distributions of the Sub-Fund to the
mnitholders; and

+ Suspend the creation and redemption of units under centain circumstance as currently disclosed in
the Prospectus of the Sub-Fund.
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CHOFP FTSE CHINA ASO ETF
(A SUB-FUND OF CSOP ETF SERIES)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DISTRIBUTION
018 2017
RME RME
Final distributicn
RMBO.2T per unit on 1,532, 500,000 units 413,775,000 403,650,000

{2017: RMBO.27 per unit on 1,495,000,000 units)

The final digrabution of RMBO.27(2017: RMBO.27) per unit on 1,532.500,000 (2017: 1.495.000,000) unils
outdanding on the ex-dividend date 14 December 2018 (2017: 18 December 2017) was paid on 27 December
2018 (2017 29 December 2017).

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

Ag of 31 December 2008 and 2007, other than investments as disclosed in the financial statements which are
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, all financial assets including deposit reserve,
interest receivable, amounts due from brokers and bank balances are categonised as and carmied at amortised
cost. All the financial liabilities of the Sub-Fund are carned at amontised cost.

The carrying value of the financial assets and liabilities are considered by the Manager to approximate their
Fair value as they are shom term in nature and the effect of disconnting is immaterial.

INVESTMENT LIMITATION AND PROHIBITIONS UNDER THE SFC CODE

The SFC Code allows the Sub-Fund to invest in constituent securities issned by a single issuer for more than
10%% of the Sub-Fund's net asset value provided that the investment 15 imited to any constituent securities that
each accounts for more than 10% of the weighting of the Index and the Sub-Fund's holding of any such
constituent securities may not exceed their respective weightings in the Index {except as a result of changes in
the composition of the Index and the excess is transitional and temporary in nature),

The Manager and the Trustee have confirmed that the Sub-Fund has complied with this linit during the vears
ended 31 December 2018 and 2017,

There was one constituent security (2017: 1) that individually accounted for more than 10% of the net asset
value of the Sub-Fund and their respective weightings of the FTSE China A50 Index as at 31 December 2018

and 2017,
Weighting
i the Index (%0) %% of net asset value
018 2017 2018 2017
PING AN INSURANCE (GROUP) CO OF CHINA
LTD A SHR ORD CNY1 11.%1 12,09 11.50 12.08

[uring the year ended 31 December 2018, the FTSE China AS0 Met Tolal Return Index decreased by 19.36%
{2017: increased by 35.38%0) while the net asset value per unit of the Sub-Fund decreased by 22278 (2017
increased by 30.35%).
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CHOFP FTSE CHINA ASO ETF
(A SUB-FUND OF CSOP ETF SERIES)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SOFT COMMISSION ARRANGEMENT

The Manager has entered into soft commussion amangements for the vears ended 31 December 2018 and 2017
with some brokers under which certain goods and services used to support imvestment decision making are
obtained from third parties and are paid for by the brokers in consideration of transactions of the Sub-Fumd
directed to the brokers, These may include, for example, research and advisory services, econommc and
political analysis, portfolio analyss, including valuation and performance e measurement; market analysis, dida
and quotation services, clearing, registrar and custodial services and investment-related publication; computer
hardware and software incidental to the above goods and senvices,

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Manager makes the strategic resource allocations on behalf of the Sub-Fund and has determined the
operating segments based on the reports reviewed which are used to make strategic decisions.

The Manager considers that the Sub-Fund has a single operating, segment which is investing in securities. The
objectives of the Sub-Fund are to track the performance of the FTSE China AS0 Index and invest in
substantially all the index constiteents with security weight and industry weight that are closely aligned with
the characteristics of the tracked index.

The imtermal financial information used by the Manager for the Sub-Fund's assets, liabilities and performance
i= the same as that disclosed in the statement of financial position amd gatement of comprehensive income.

The Sub-Fund is domiciled in Hong Kong, The Sub-Fund’s income is denved from investments in PRC
securities which constitute FTSE China AS0 Index, the tracked index.

The total of non-current asseds of the Sub-Fund located in PRC is RMB 1,383,200 (2017 RMB1.383,200 ) as at
31 December 2018. The Sub-Fund has no other assets classified as non-current assets. As at 31 December
2018, the Sub-Fund has a diversified portfolio of investments and one investment accounts for more than 10%%
of the Sub-Fund's net asset value (2017 one).

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial atements were approved by the Trostee and the Manager on 2% April 200%.
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CSOF FISE CHINA ASDETF
(A SUB-FUND OF CSOF ETF SERIES)

INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO (Unaudited)

Az a 3 December 2018
Fair value %a of net
Hol dings RNB assels
[nvestments (99.26%0)
Listed equities (99.26%)
China {99.26%%)
360 SECURITY TECHNOLOGY INC A SHRES ORD CNY 1.431.850 29,166,784 0,19
AGRICULTURAL BANK OF CHINA A SHS ORD CNYL 138,101,703 497,166,131 317
AMHUI CONCH CEMENT COMPANY LTD SHS A ORD
CHY1 6,228 856 152,380,504 116
BANK OF BEWING COLTD ORD CNYI CL A 45,786,026 256,859 606 1.64
BANK OF CHINA LTD A SHS ORD CNY'1 T5.970.087 274,284 504 1.75
BANE OF COMMUNICATIONS LTD A SHRS ORD CNY TL162.959 417,823,533 2.66
BANK OF SHANGHAI CO LTD A SHS ORD CNY1 16439426 183,957,177 L.17
BAOSHAN [RON & STEEL COLTD CL A ORD CHNY'1 18933451 123067431 0.78
CHINA CITIC BANK CORP A SHRES ORD CNY ] 9,820,542 53,521,954 0.34
CHINA COMMUNICATIONS CONSTRUCTION COLTD A
SHS ORD NPV 5081717 37.220.133 0.36
CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK A SHS ORD CNYI 32450407 206,709,093 1.22
CHINAEVERBRIGHT BANK COLTD A ORD CHY1 50229641 185,849,672 1.18
CHINA LIFE INSURANCE CO A SHS ORD NPV 5254723 107,143,802 0.68
CHINA MERCHANTS BANK A SHR ORD CNYI 42388303 1,068,185,236 580
CHINAMERCHANTS SHEKOU INDUSTRIAL £ONE COLTD
ORD CNY1 7408313 128.534.230 0.82
CHINA MINSHENG BANKING CO LTD A SHR CRD CNYI 99687916 571,211,752 3
CHINA PACIFIC INSURANCE GROUP A SHR CRD CNY'L 9065234 257,724 603 1.64
CHINAPETROLEUM & CHEMICAL CORP CL A ORD CNY 1 34,447,736 173,961,067 1.11
CHINA RAIL WAY GROUP LTD A ORD CHNY1 18.536,147 129 567 667 (.83
CHINA RAIL WAYS CONSTRUCTION CORP A SHS ORD
CHY1 13,684 401 148,749.439 0,95
CHINA SHENHUA ENERGY CO LTD A SHS ORD CNYI 7,133,836 128,123,695 (.82
CHINA STATE CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING CORF LTD
A SHR ORI CNY' 1 60,562.477 35,206,119 2.20
CHINA UNITED NETWORK COMMUNICATIONS LTD A
SHES ORD CNY1 27428367 141,804,657 0.90
CHINA VANEE COLTD A SHE ORD CNY'1 23310319 555,251,799 354
CHINA YANGTZE POWER COLTD CL A ORD CNY'1 14275438 226,693,955 1.45
CITIC SECURITIES COLTD A SHE ORD CNY'1 28,019,100 448,585,791 2.86
CONTEMPORARY AMPEREX TECHNOLOGY COLTD A
SHS ORD CHY 791,295 58,397,571 0.37
CRRC CORPLTD A SHE ORD CNY1 26,344,690 242,139,104 1.54
FOSHAN HAITIAN FLAVOURING & FOOD COMPANY LTD
A SHS ORD CNY1 973767 66,995,170 0.43
FOXCONN INDUSTRIAL INTERNET COLTD A SHRES ORD
CNYL 4,029 867 46,706,158 0,30
GREE ELECTRIC APPLIANCES INC OF ZHUHAT A SHS
ORD CHNY1 15,337.012 547,377,958 349
GUOTAIJUNAN SECURITIES COLTD A SHRS ORD NPV 11.921.756 182,641,302 116
HANGZHOU HIKVISION DIGITAL TECHNOLOGY COLTD
A SHS ORD NPV 10,071,162 259,433,133 1.65
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CSOF FISE CHINA ASDETF
(A SUB-FUND OF CSOF ETF SERIES)

INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO (Unaudited) (Continued)

Az a 3 December 2018
Fair value o of net
Holdings RMB assels
[nvestments (99.26%) (Continned)
Listed equities (99.26%) (Continued)
China (%9.26%) (Continued})
INDUSTRIAL AND COMMERCIAL BANK OF CHINA LTD A
SHS ORD CHY1 77,754,283 410,320,157 262
INDUSTRIAL BANK COLTD A SHR ORD CHY'1 49,944,618 746,172,593 4.75
INNER MONGILIA YILI INDUSTRIAL GROUP OO LTD A
SHE ORD CHY1 17.968,172 410,111,775 262
JIAMGSU HENGRUI MEDICINE CO LTD A SHR ORD CNY1 6,105,065 322,042,179 205
JIANGAU YANGHE BREWERY JOINT-STOCK CO LTD A
SHS ORD CNY1 1,588,585 150,470,771 096
KWEICHOW MOUTALI CO LTD A SHRE ORD CNY'1 1,593,582 940,229,316 599
MIDEA GROUP COMPANY LIMITED A SHRE ORD NPV 14,148,895 521,528,270 i .
WEW CHINA LIFE INSURANCE CO LTD A SHRS ORD NPV 2,363,258 90 824,018 .64
PETROCHINA COLTD A SHRES CNY 14,592 838 105,214,362 067
PING AN BANK COLTD A SHE. ORD CNY1 25,997,087 243,852,676 1.55
PING AN INSURANCE (GROUP) CO OF CHINA LTD A SHE
ORD CNY1 32193 144 1,806,035 378 11.50
POLY DEVELOPMENTS AND HOLDINGS GROUP CO LT A
SHR ORD CMY1 24,629,210 25,386,639 1.85
SFHOLDING OO LTD A SHRS ORD CHNY 1 2562143 83.910,1831 .53
SAIC MOTOR CORP LTD A SHRE ORD CNY'1 9,767,843 260,508,373 1.66
SHANGHAI INTERNATIONAL PORT GR LTD A SHRE ORD
CHY L 10,868,480 56,298 726 036
SHANGHAI PUDONG DEVELOFPMENT BANK CO LTD A
SHHE ORD CNY'1 51,847,667 508,107,137 324
WULIANGYE YIBRIN COLTD A SHS ORD CNY'L 6,35 755 322572014 205
Total Investments 15,582,325.704 9926
Other net assels 115853018 0.74
Met assels attributable to unitholders at 31 December 2018 15.698,178,722 100,00
Taotal investments, at cost 15921312210
31
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(2019 17 )

17,404,847,923.67
(288,398,330,095 )

624,044,065.86
(10,340,410,171 )

16,780,803,857.81
(278,057,919,924 )

1,362,000,000

12.3207
(204 )

178/339



EDINETOOOO
OO00D0O00o0O00D0bDO000DO0Odnoo(E27318)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

@

@

179/339



EDINETOOOO
OO00D0O00o0O00D0bDO000DO0Odnoo(E27318)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(2019 21 )
253,333,333
( 3,628 )

200,000,000

* ( 622 )(2014 )
2
ETF
2019 30 30
4,879,243,290.77 ( 5478 4100 )
(2019 30 )
( )

119,813,270.47

119,813,270.47

3,162,590,319.35
76,027,117.05
643,109,864.12

375,751,982.76

17 4,257,479,283.27

446,608,147.43

446,608,147.43

42,383,834.16

42,383,834.16

12,958,755.44

12,958,755.44

4,879,243,290.77

30 ( 5.478 4,100 )
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2216200 I1TRT A% 3264 471 46 747 205
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PRl LT ERETHE T hDafMEE Ha), 8 470467 425 6 7370093 506 428 532 551 6 136 586_130
FeHITTRE &R Ha),9 - - 10,132,803 145 101,720
WL LvE, FRIdE. FOoftfinE 10 40,101 po) 703,127 i 147 970,573 2118 938 A05
RaEk LiFR &R 1 305,484 073 4374 551005 0% 447 014 400 174 128
825 052,288 11 814,753 P S0 033 541 12 fi02 300 603
wESSH 427 268 ETT 11346490 319 BT E4E 312 12 49 547 528
BEruk
SHBFICRET SHBERE
b=y 11 254,266 A 4 170 595 A 5T 204 266 HG6 4 170 GR A5T
T Mith 5 % (1 498,553 (21 ATTE05 (222010 137,191
F| i il =35 5 221,865 865 3,177,119 187 181 235053 2,505 285 050
eSS - - 1042,7650 I7 B20452
G EX T 4= S04 f32505 7 226,340 235 467 155 578 6 FE0 f6T AT
Atk
=EHAK
LM E AT 35050 420 514 550 0m WATE S 57100620
EEOHEILICH T SERS 12(ch M3 305 13,5900 416 f68,200 0 57042
FHLVERE LFF DD &S F0,8 g5l 1002813 146 130 916,119 1731518 524
FiLEodE 12 163 520 ) 2341606 400 154 D000 2791227200
BEZ 7 LAFICEET 23RS Lk 51008 765 T44 522315 553537 TR f58a11
85 ol T E S T 2 ek R & 3a) 212 746 IM6 58 . .
I AI6,1T9 4 (20,150 pE3 411771 990 5 p06 574807
BERA K
PRIER B R G - - 4420744 3 305 054
AikSst I FI6,1TH 4 f20,150 55 416 152 734 599 570951
MBIk - ASSH 87 268 577 11 3446 400 319 203340 312 12 540 547 523
10 70 CSOP
2019 3 12
Ding Chen Zhang Gaobo
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ASAT 31 DECEMBER 2018
Motes 2018 207
HKS HES
ASSETS

Non-current assets
Proy and equipment 7 1,512,148 3264471
Dﬂm tax assets 6(b) 704,141 -
2,216,289 1,264,471
Current assels T
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 3{a), 8 470,467,425 428,532,551
Available-for-sale financial assels I{u), 9 - 10,132,303
Prepavments, deposits and other recervables 10 49,101,090 147,970,573
Cash and cash equivalents |9 305,484,073 203447914

§25,052,588 880,083,841

- ErrraEEEEmEErEEy

Total asscts 827,268,877 883348512
EQUITY

Equity attributable to the owners of the Company

Sharc capital 11 284,266,666 284,266,666
Other reservies (1,499.833) (288,910)
Retained eamings 221,865,865 181,235,053
Mon-controlling interests - 1,942,769
Total equity 504,632,698 467,155,578
LIABILTTIES

Current liabilitics

Current tax liabilities 35,932,422 39,874,345
Amount due 1o immediate holding company 18(c) 943,395 B6E,299
Accrued liabilities and other payables 70,028,851 120,916,119
Dividend pavable 12 163,520,000 194,960,000
Mon-controlling interest derived from investment funds 13(k) 51,998,765 55,353,227
FFinancial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 3(a) 212,746 -

322,636,179 411,771,990

Mon-current liabilitics

Deferred tax labilities 6(b) - 4,420,744
Total linbilitics 322,636,179 416,192,734
Total cquity and liabilities 27268 877 83,348,312

The consolidated fnaneal statements on F.guﬁ 10 to 70 were approved by the Board of Directors on
12 March 2019 and were signed on its behall

T ( Z

Ding Chen Zhang Gaobo
Director Director

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
10
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

Motes

Revenue 14, 18(a)b)
Interest income
Dividend income
Other income 14
Net (lossesYgains on financial assets and liabilities at

fair value through profit or loss 15
Wet foreign exchange (losses)'gains
Operating profil
Operaling expenses 16
Profit before tax
Tax expense Gla)

FProfit for the vear

Profit atiri butable to:
Equity holders of the Company
Non-controlling interest

Other comprehensive Income:

Items that may be subsequently reclassified to profit
or loss

Met unrealised gains in far value of avalable-for-sale

financial assets

Currency translation differences

OMher comprehensive income Tor the year
Total comprehensive income for the vear
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company
Non-controlling interest

Total comprehensive income for the vear

EDINETOOOO
OO00D0O00o0O00D0bDO000DO0Odnoo(E27318)
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2018 2017
HKS HES
285,287,193 39 125118
18373192 16,533,913
1,261,001 1,635,720
10,788,043 1.893.577
(50,371,367 52,378,809
(4,753,355) 4,844 418
260,584,707 446,415,555
(214,040,668)  (292.425,683)
46,544,039 153,989,872
(7.358,754)  (17.729.629)
38,985,285 136,260,243
40,052,187 138,775,215
(1,066,902) (2.514,972)
38,985,285 136,260,243
- 5T8.625
(632,298) 1.867.579
{632,298) 2446,204
38,352,987 138,706,447
319,419,889 141.221.419
(1,066,902) (2,514,972)
18352087 138,706 447

The accompanying notes form an integral pant of these consolidated financial statements.
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CEOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

CONSQLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
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Mo

Share Cther Retained controlling Total

Maotes capital TESEIVEs CETINGS Tuotal interest ety

HEKS HES HES HES HES HES

Balance at 31 December 2007 284,266,666 (2889100 181.235,053 465,212,800 1,942,769 467,155,578

Effect of adeption of HKFRS @ - (378,625) STRG25 . . i

Balance at 1 January 2018 284,266, 666 (867, 535) 181,813,678 465,212,800 1,942,769 487155578

Comprelensive income

Profit for the year - - 40,052,187 40,052,187 (1,006,%02) 38,985,285
Other conprehensive income

Currency translation difference (632,208) (632,208) (632,208)

Total other comprehensive income - (632,208) 40,052,187 39419888 (1.000,502) 38352987

Disposal of a subsidiary Bia) - - - (BT75.867) (B75.867)

Balance at 31 December 2008 284,266,666 {1,499.833) 221,865,865 504,632,698 - 504,632,608

The accompamying notes form an infegral pant of these consolidated financial statements,

246/339
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CEOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUEL)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

Maotes
Balance at 1 January 2017
Comprelensive ncome
Profit for the vear
Other comprehensive income
MNet unrealized gaing in fair value of
available-for-zale financial assets
Currency translation difference
Total other comprehensive income
Transactions with ewners in their
capacity as owners
Share repurchase 11
Dividend decbared 12

Total transaction with owners in
their capacity as owners

Balance at 31 December 2017

EDINETOOOO
OO00D0O00o0O00D0bDO000DO0Odnoo(E27318)
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Mor
Share Other Retained controlling Total
capital reserves eETngs Total interest equity
HES HES HES HES HES HES
284,200,606 2567886 226,223,504 513,058,056 4457741 517,515,797
- - 138,775,215 138,775,215 (2,514,972) 136,260,243
- 57,625 - 578,625 - 578,625
- 1,867,579 - 1,867,579 - 1.867,579
- 2446204 138,775,215 141,221 412 (2,5314,972) 138,706,447
- (2,303,040 (75,963 666) (84,286, 666) - (84, 266,666)
B = (10, B00,000) (104, 800,000 - {100,800, (K1)
E (53050000 (183 763,666)  (1R9.066,666) = (189066, 666)
284,266,666 (ZRRO100 181,235,053 465,212,809 1,942,769 467,155,578

The accompanying notes form an integral pan of these consolidated financial gatements,
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

Notes 18 2017
HKS HKS
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operating activities 13 {a) 93,259.367 146,323,872
Tax {paid)/refind (16,747 9594 19759492
et cash generated from operating activities 76,511,373 148,299 864
Cash Mlows from investing activities
Purchase of property and equipment 7 (725,079} (173,240
Proceeds from sales of financial assefs at fair value
throwgh profit or loss 2. 162,086 15,463,523
Purchases of financial assets at fair valee through profit or
loss (62 122824) (33,846,530
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiary Ha) 2,075,165 -
Dividend received 1261001 1,639,720
Interest received 18,373,192 16533913
Net cash used in investing activities (35.976,461) (382.723)
Cash flows from finandng activities
Payment for share repurc hase - (81.317.334)
Payment of redemption of shares of subsidiary funds {3.855,628) (30,240,952)
Proceeds from subscnption of shares of subsidiary finds 9,796,875 10,808,713
Purchase of additional interest of subsidiary fiund - (29.165.127)
Dividend paid 12 (31.440,000) -
et cash used in financing activities (25498,753) (129,914, 700)
Met increase in cash and cash equivalents 12,036,159 18,002,441
Cash and cash equivalents at | January 203447914 275445473
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 19 305,434,073 203447914
Amalysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents
Cash a1 banks 305,393,873 293,286 380
Cash in hand 20,2040 151,534

305484073 293447914

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

14
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M DECEMBER 2018

1 Creneral information

CEOP Asset Management Limited (the “Company™) provides asset management services,  The
Company is licensed by the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Commission to carry out Type 1
{dealing in securities), Type 4 (advising on secunties) and Type 9 (asset management b regulated
activities,

The Company is a limited Bability company incorporated in Hong Kong. The address of its registensd
office is Suite 2802, Two Exchange Square, 8 Connanght Place, Central, Hong Kong.

China Southern Fund Management Co. Ltd., a company incorporated in the People’s Republic of
China, is the immediate and ultimate holding company of the Company .

As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, the Company invested in a number of companies
and investmend funds with significant shareholding which are recognised as the subsidiaries of the
Company (together, the “Group®).

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared by consolidating the financial
information of the compames and investment funds which are regarded as the subsidianes of the
Group as af 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, Refer to Mote 8 for the details of the
subsidiaries.

These consolidated financial statements of the Compamy and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group™)
are presented in HK dollars (*HKS"), unless otherwise stated.

2 Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated Gnancial statements
are set oul below, These policies have been consistently applied o all the vears presented, unless
otherwise stated.

21 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with all Hong
Kong Financial Reponing Standards (“HKFRS") (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HEASs") and Interpretations) issued by the Hong
Kong Institue of Certified Public Accountanis (*HKICPA™) and accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong) and requirements of the Hong Kong Companies ordinance Cap. 622, The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified
bry the revaluation of financial assets and liabilities at fair value throngh profit or loss,

=15 -
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M DECEMBER 2018

2 Summary of significant accounting polides (Continued)

P | Basis of preparation (Continmed)
The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with HEFRS requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates, It also requires management 1o exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in Note 4,
{a) Changes in accounting policy

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for the first time for the current year's
financial statements,

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measivement of Slhare-based Pavment

Transaciions
Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HEFRS ¢ Financial Instrusrenis with
HEFRE & Insurance Conbracts
HEKFR3 9 Finemeial fnstruments
HEFRS 15 Revenue from Contracis with Cusiomers
Amendments to HEKFRS 15 Clarificarions to HEFRS 15 Revenve from Cortracis with Customers
HE(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foregign Curreney Transactions and Advance Consideration
Annual Improvements Apwe neimenis to HEFRS 1 and HEAS 28

2014-2016 Cycle

Other than as explained below, the adoption of the above revised standards has had no significant
financial effect on these firancial stalements,

The nature and the impact of the new and revised HKFRSs are described below;
(1} HEFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments*

HKFRS 9 Financial Tnstrements replaces HEAS 39 Fiwancial Tnstrumients: Recognition amnd
Measurement for anmual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, bringing together all three
aspects of the accounting for financial instrments: classification and measurement, impairment and
hedge accounting,

The Group has recognised the transition adjustment agains the applicable opening balances of equity
at 1 January 2018, Therefore, the comparative information was not restated and continues to be
reported under HEKAS 39,

The expected impacts related to the classification and measurement requirements are summearised as
follonws:

Upon adoption of HEKFRS 9. the classification and messurement of financial assets depends on two
assesaments: the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the entity"s business model
for managing the financial asset. Financial assets, which do not pass the contractual cash flow
characteristics test in HKFRS 9, will be reclassified as financial assets o far value throngh profit or
loss.

= 16 =

250/339



EDINETOOOO
OO00D0O00o0O00D0bDO000DO0Odnoo(E27318)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M DECEMBER 2018

2 Summary of significant accounting polides (Continued)
P | Basis of preparation (Continmed)

{a) Changes in accounting policy (Confinued)

(i) HKFRS 9, 'Financial instruments’ {Continued)

Classification and measurement (Continusd)

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had available-for-sale investments of HK310,132,802 in
mvestment products which are non-trading in nature. The available for-sale investments are measurned
at fair value and the fair value changes are recognised in equity under the available-for-sale investment
revaluation reserve. Upon adoption of HKFRS 9, the Group designated those financial assets
ariginally classified as available-for-sale investments to financial assets through profit or loss. The
available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve of HK$578,625 was recognised in retained eamings
as at 1 January 2018,

The following mformation sets out the impacts of adopting HEFRS 9 on the datement of financial
positicn, including the effect of replacing HEK AS 39°s incwred credit 1oss calculations with HKFES
9°g expected credit losses ("ECL=").

A reconciliation between the camy amoumnts under HEAS 39 and the balances reported under HEFRES
9 as al | January 2018 is a= follows:

As ot 31 Decenber 2017 Asat L.Jamuary 20018 under
under HEAS 30 HEFRS 9
Re- Re-
Note  Categnry Armoant chmsficatim  messurament Armoaint Categmry
Financial asets HES HKS HES HES
Cach and cush equivalents L&ER!  msaaisis - - aatme A
Svailablefor-sale firansal ameds AFSY 10,132 803 {10132 203
} Finwwciad - cgeer o i ealie
orles A (10 I3Z 803 )
Fiancwl asseds o B value through
ot or koss FVPLY 430532551 10,132203 - A3 400 354 FVPL
Auadableforsde finomcial
foos A 10,132,503
CHher pecervabbes L&R b 15406 . E 186, 135 404 AT
BTR 243674 = . BT HBETH

'L&R' Loans and recarables

A0 Amorlised oo

AAFE Awilablefor-2ale

*FVEL: Fuir vakue theough profit and los

There has been no impact on the Group's accounting for financial habilities as the new requirements
umder HKFRS 9 only affect the accounting, for financial liabilities that are designated at fair value
through profit or loss and the Company does not have any such liabilities,

-] =
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M DECEMBER 2018

2 Summary of significant accounting polides (Continued)
P | Basis of preparation (Continmed)

{a) Changes in accounting policy (Confinued)

(1) HEFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments” { Continmed)

Classification and measurement (Continusd)

A A of 1 January 2018, the Group assessed its liquidity portfolio which had previously been classified
as available-for-sale (“AFS™) equity instruments. The Group concluded that, these mstnmments are
neot held for trading but are intended to be held for the foreseeable future. Accordingly, the Group
has elected for the option to measure the investment at fair value through profit and loss (“FVPL™)
and classified these investments as equity instruments measured at FYVPL.

Impairment

HEFRS 9 requires an impairment on debt instroments recorded a amortised cost or at fr valoe
through other comprehensive income, lease receivables, loan commitments and financial guarantee
comtracts that are nol accounted for at Fair value through profit or loss under HEKFRS 9, 1o be recorded
tased on an expected credit loss mode] either on a twelve-month basis or a lifetime basis.

The Group applied the simplified approach and recorded hifetime expected losses that are estimated
based on the present values of all cash shonfalls over the remaining life of all of its deposits. other
receivables and cash and cash equivalents. Given the limited exposure of the Group to credit risk, this
amendment has not had a material impact on the financial statements,

(i1} HEFES 15, Revemie from contracts with customers'

HEFRS 15 and its amendments replace HEKAS 11 Construction Contracts, HEAS 18 Revenue and
related interpretations and it applies, with limited exceptions, to all revenue arising from conlracts
with customers. HEKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to account for revernme ansing from
contracts with cugtomers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised st an amount that reflects the
consideration Lo which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferning goods or senvices
to a customer, The principles in HKFRS 15 provide a more strectured approach for measuring and
recognising revenug. The standard alzo infroduces extensive qualitative and quantitative disclosune
requirements, including disaggregation of total revenue, information about performance obligations,
changes in contract asset and liabality account balances between periods and kev judgements and
estimates. The disclosures are included in note 14 to the financial siatements. As a result of the
apphcation of HEKFRS 15, the Group has changed the accounting policy with respect to revenue
recogmtion in note 2.14 to the financial statements,

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 using the modified retrospective method of adoption, Under this
method, the standard can be applied either to all contracts @ the date of mibal application or only (o
contracts that are not completed at this date. The Group has elected to apply the standard to contracts
that are not completed as o 1 January 2018, The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 from 1 January 2018
and the effect of the adoption is nol considered 1o be sigm ficant on the financial statements. Therefore,
the comparative information was not restated and continues to be reponted under HKAS 11, HKAS
138 and related interpretations,

=18 -
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M DECEMBER 2018

2 Summary of significant accounting polides (Continued)
P | Basis of preparation (Continmed)
(b} New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

A number of new standards and amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual
periods beginming after 1 January 2019 and 1 Jamuary 2020, and have not been applied in preparing
these financial statements. The Directors of the Group consider none of these is expected to have a
significant effect on the financial statements of the Group, except the following =et out below:

(i) HEFRS 16, ‘Leases”

HKFES 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HE(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an Amangement
containg a Lease, HR(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases - Incentives and HE(SIC)-Int 27 Evaloating the
Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of 2 Lease, The standard sets out the principles
for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees 1o
recogmse assets and labilities for most leases. The standard includes two recognition exemplions for
lessees — leases of low-value assets and short-lerm leases.

Al the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability 1o make lease payments (i.e.,
the lease liabality) and an assel representing the nght 1o use the underlying asset during the lease term
(1., the right -of-use gsset), The nght-of-use asset is subsequently measured o cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses unless the right-of-use asset meets the definition of investment
property in HEAS 40, or relates to a class of property, plamt and equipment to which the revaluation
model 15 apphed. The lease hatahty 15 subsequently mereased to reflect the interest on the lease
liability and reduced for the lease payments. Lessees will be required to separately recognise the
interest expense on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset. Lessees
will also be required 1o remeasure the lease lability vpon the ocourrence of cenain evends, such as
change in the leaze term and change in future leaze payments resulting from a change in an index or
rate used to detenmine those payments. Lessees will generally recognise the amount of the
remeasuremnent of the lease hability as an adjustment (o the right-of-use asset,

Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from the accounting under HEKAS 17,
Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the same classification prnciple in HKAS 17 and
distinguish between operating leases and fimance leases, HKFRS 16 requires lessees and lessors to
make more extensive disclosures than under HKAS 17. Lessees can choose to apply the standard using
gither a fill retrospective or a modified retrospective approach. The Group will adopt HKFRS 16
from 1 January 2019,

=10 =
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M DECEMBER 2018

2 Summary of significant accounting polides (Continued)

P | Basis of preparation (Continmed)
(b) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted (Continuwed)
(i) HKFRS 16, “Leases” {continued)

The Group plans to adopt the transitional provisions in HKFRS 16 to recognise the cummlative effect
of initial adoption as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings at 1 January 2019 and
will nod restate the comparatives. In addition, the Group plans to apply the new requirements to
coniracts that were previously identified as leases applving HEAS 17 and measure the lease liability
at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the Group's incremental
borrowing rate at the date of initial application. The right=of-use asset will be measured at the amount
of the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating 1o the
lease recogmised in the statement of financial postion immedigtely before the date of initial application.
The Group plans to use the exemplions allowed by the standard on lease contracts whose lease terms
end within 12 months as of the date of imtial application. During 2018, the Group has performed a
detaled assessment on the impact of adoption of HEFRS 16, The Group has estimated that nght-of-
use aszets of HK$38,709,474 and lease linbilities of HEK338,709.474 will be recognized at 1 January
2019,

22 Subsidiaries
(a) Consolidaion

Subsidiaries are all entities {including structured entities) over which the Group has control.
The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, vanable retums
from its involvement with the entity and has the alibity to affect those retums through s
power over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consoclidated from the date on which control is
transfemred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases. The
Grroup uses the acquisition method of accounting to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurmed and the equity interests issued by the Group,

The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or hability resulting from a
contingent consideration amrangement. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incumed.
Identifiable assets acquired and labilities amd contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. On an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest s proportionate share of the
#Cquires’s net gssels,

[nter-company transactions, balances, income and expenses on (ransactions between group
companies are eliminated, Profits and losses resulting from inter-company transactions that

are recogmsed in assets are also ehminated. When necessary, amounts repored by
subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with the Group's accounting policies.

= T} =
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M DECEMBER 2018

2 Summary of significant accounting polides (Continued)
22 Subsiciaries (continued)
(b Separate financial statements

For the vear ended 31 December 20108, investment in subsidiaries at the Company level is
accounted for as financial assets af fair valoe through profit or loss and stated at fair value in
accordance with HKFRS 9 “Financial Instrument”. For the year ended 31 December 2017,
imvestment in subsidiaries at the Company level is accounted for as investments in subsidianes
- available-forsale and stated at fair value in accordance with HEAS 39 “Financial
Instrument: Recognition and Measurement”.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon receiving a dividend
from these investments if the dividemd exceeds the total comprehensive income of the
subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the camying amount of the investment
inthe separate financial statements exceeds the camying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including goodwall.

13 Assodates

Associates are all entities over wiich the Group has sigm ficant influence bt not control, generally
accompanmying a shargholding of between 20%% and 50%% of the voting rights,

The Group has invested in certain mvestment funds that 1 manages, The Group has applied the
measurement exemplion within HE AS 28 * Investments in Associates and Jomd Ventures™ for sl
funds, unit trusts and similar entities and such investmenis are classified as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss,

24 Foregn currency (ranslation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial ststements of each of the Group's entities are measured using
the cumency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency™). The consolidated financial stsfements are presented in HEK dollars,
which is the Group’s functional and the Group's presentation currency.

] Transactions and balances

Foreign corrency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are re-measured.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from
the translation al vear-end exchange rates of monetary as=sets and liabilities denominated in
forgign currencies are recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,

Foreign exchange gaing and losses that relate to borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income within “net foreign

exchange gains{losses)”. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income within “other gains/{losses|”.
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M DECEMBER 2018

2 Summary of significant accounting polides (Continued)
24 Forden currency translation (continued)
by Transactions and balances {contimued)

For the year ended 31 December 2017, changes in the fair value of monetary securilies
denominated in foreign currency classified as available-for-sale are analysed between
translation differences resulting from changes in the amonised cost of the security and other
changes in the camrying amoun of the security. Translation differences related to changes in
amortised cost are recognised in profit or loss, amd other changes in carrying amount are
recogmised in other comprehensive income.

For the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2018, translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets and labilities such as equities held at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss. For the year ended 31
December 2017, translation differences on non-monetary financial assets such as equities
classified as available-for-sale are included in other comprehensive income.

c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none of which has the curmency of
2 hyper-inflationary economy ) (hat have a fimetional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation curmency as follows;

{i) aszets and liabilities presented are translated at the closing rate af the penod/vear end
dlate;

(i} income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are translated af the rate on the
dates of the transactions), and

(il all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Om consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in
foreign operations are taken to other comprehensive income. When a foreign operation is
partially disposed of or sold, exchange dafferences that were recorded in equily ane recogmsed
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income s pant of the gain or logs on sale.
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M DECEMBER 2018

2 Summary of significant accounting polides (Continued)
.5 Property and equi pment

Property and equipment is stated al histoncal cost less accumulaied depreciation. Historical cost
inclndes expemditure that is directly attributable to the acquizition of the items,

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate assel, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that fatune economic benefits associated with the item will fow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrving amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income dunng the financial period in which they are incurred,

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost or revalued amounts to
their residual values over their estimmted usefil lives, as follows:

Fumniture and fixtures 5 years

Office equipment 3 - 5 vears
Leasehold improvements over lease Lerm
Motor vehicle 5 vears

The assets’ residual values and wseful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriste, at the end of
each reporting periodl.  An asset’s carmying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset’s carmying amount is greater than ils estimated recoverable amount.

Gaing and losses on disposals are detenmined by companng the proceeds with the camying amount
and are recognised within “other gains/{lossez)" in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income,

26 Impai rment of non-finandal assets

Assets that have an indefinite nseful life, for example goodwill, are not subject to amorization and
are tested annually for impairment. Assets are reviewed for impairment whenaver events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the camying amount may not be recoverable. An impainment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amonnt. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating umits), Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impaimment @t each reporting
date,
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M DECEMBER 2018

2 Summary of significant accounting polides (Continued)
7 Financial assets and labilities
271 Financal instruments (polides under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)

Tritiad recogrition and measurement
Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair
value through other comprehensive income, and fair valoe through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset's contractual
cash flow characteristics and the Gronp®s business model for managing them. With the exception of
trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or fior which the Group has
applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a sigm ficant financing component, the
Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair value, plos in the case of a financial asset not ot
fadr value through profit or loss, transaction costs, Trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has apphied the practical expedient are measured at the
transaction price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition (applicable from | January 20 18" below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amonised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest (SPPU) on the principal amount outstanding.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets
in order to generate cash Bows, The business mode] determines whether cash Qows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recogmised on the trade date, that is, the
date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Swabse uoe nit e asicreme
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets ar amortised cost (el insiruments

The Group measures financial assets al amortised cost 1if both of the followang conditions are met:

o The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash Nlows,

# The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest method and

are subject to impaiment, Gains and losses are recogrised in the statement of profit or loss when the
asset 15 derecogmised, modifed or impaired,
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M DECEMBER 2018

2 Summary of significant accounting polides (Continued)
2.7 Financial assets and labilities (Continuwed)
271 Finandal instrument (policies under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018) (continued)

Financial assets designated af faiv value through other compre fensive income (equity imvestine nis)
Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect 1o classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity
investments designated at fair value through other comprehensive income when they meet the
defirdtion of equity under HEK AS 32 Fimancial Instruments; Presemtation and are not held for trading.
The classification 15 determined on an instrument-by-instrioment basis,

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to the statement of profit or loss.
Dividends are recognised as other income in the staterment of profit or loss when the rght of payment
has been established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow
tothe Group amd the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably, except when the Group benefits
from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such gains
are recorded in other comprehensive income, Equity investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income are not subject to impairment assessment.

Financicl assets ai fair value toough profii or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for wading, financial
assels desigmated upon iatial recogmbion at far value through profit or loss, or financial assets
mandsonly required to be measured at fair value, Financial assets are classfied as held for trading if
they are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives, including
separated embedded denvatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as
effective hedzing instruments. Financial assets with cash flows that are not solely pavments of
principal and interest are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of
the business model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to be classified at amontized
cost, debt maraoments may be desiznated 8l far value throngh profit or loss on imitial recognition if
doing o eliminates, or significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.

- D5 -
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M DECEMBER 2018

2 Summary of significant accounting poll ces (continued)
b2 d Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
.71  Financial instrument (policies under HEFRS 2 applicable from 1 January 2018) (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are camied in the stalement of financial position at
fair value with net changes in fair valne recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes denvabive mstruments and equity investments which the Group had not
irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through other comprehensive income. Dividends on equity
investments classified as financial assets at fair value profit or loss are also recognised a8 other income
i the statement of profit or loss when the nght of payment has been established, it is probable that
the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.

Reassessment only occurs if there 15 either a change in the terms of the contract that sigmficantly
modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out
of the fair value through profit or loss category,

272 Finandal instruments (policdes under HEKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 200 8)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial investments. When financial assets are
recogmised imitially, they are measured at far value plus transaction costs that are attribntable 1o the
acquisition of the financial assets, except in the case of financial assets recorded at fair valve
through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on the trade date, that is, the
date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are

purchases or sales of financial assets thet require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M DECEMBER 2018

2.7

272

Summary of significant accounting poli des (continued)
Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
Finandal instruments {policies under HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018) (continued)

Subsequent measurenent

(i) Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. After initial measurement, such assets are
subsequenily measured al amonised cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and includes fees and costs that are an integral pan of the effective
imterest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation 15 included in other income and gains m
profit or loss. The loss ansing from impairment 15 recogmised in the profit or loss,

(i Available-for-sale financial assets
Avalable-for-sale financial mvestments are non-derivalive fnancial assets m hsted and
unlisted equity investments and debt securities. Equity investments classified as available
for sale are those which are neither classified as held for trading nor designated as at far
value through profit or loss, Debt secunties i this category are those whach are infended
to be held for an indefinite period of time and which may be sold in response to needs for
liqui ity or in response to changes in market conditions,

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments are subsequently measured
al Fair value, with wrealised gains or losses recognised a5 other comprehensive income in
the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve ungil the investment is derecognised,
at which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss, or until the
investment is determined o be impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified
from the avalable-for-sale investment revaluation reserve Lo profit or loss in other gains
or losses.  Interest and dividends eamed whilst holding the available-for-sale financial
investments are reporied as interest income and dividend income, respectively and are
recognised in profit or loss as other income in accordance with the policies set oul for
"Revenue recognition {applicable before 1 January 2018)" below. When the fair value of
unlisted equty mvestments cannot be reliably measured becanse (a) the vanability in the
range of reasomable fair value estimates is significant for that investment or (b) the
probabilities of the vadous estimates within the range cannol be repsonably assessed and
used in estimating fair value, such investments are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell its available-for-sale financial
assels m the near term are still appropriste,  When, in rare circumstances, the Group is
unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets, the Group may elect to
reclassify these financial assets if management has the ability and infertion to hold the
assets for the foreseeable future or until maturity

-07-
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M DECEMBER 2018

2.7

272

Summary of significant accounting poli des (continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Finandial instruments {policies under HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018) (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continmed)

(ii} Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)

For a financial asset reclassified from the avalable-for-sale category, the faur value carmying
armonnt at the date of reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any previous gain
or loss on that asset that has been recognised in equity is amortised (o profit or loss over the
remaning life of the imvestment using the effective inerest rate.  Any difference between
the new amorised cost and the maturity amount is also amortized over the remaiming life
of the asset using the effective intered rate. If the asset is subsequently determined to be
impaired, then the amount recorded in equity 15 reclassified to profit or loss,

(ili}  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets al fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading
and financial assets designated upon imtial recogrmiion as at far value through profit or loss,
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale
inthe near term, Denvatives, including separated embedded denvatives, are also classified as
held for trading unless they are desgnated as effective hedging mstruments as defined by
HEAS 39,

Financial assets al fair value through profit or loss are carmied in the statement of financial
position at fair value with positive net changes in fair value presented as cther income and
gaing and negative net changes in fair value presented as finance costs in the statement of
profit or loss. These net fair value changes do not include any dividends or interest eamed on
these financial assets. which are recognised in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition (applicable before | January 200187 below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss are
designated at the date of initial recognition and only ifthe criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.

Reassessment only ocgurs if there is either a change in the terms of the contract that
sigm ficantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwize be required or a reclassification of
a financial asset out of the fair valoe throngh profit or loss category.

ol .
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M DECEMBER 2018

2 Summary of significant accounting poli des (continued)
2.7 Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

173 Derecognition of financial assets (policies under HEKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018 and
polides under HEAS 39 applicable before 1 January 201 8)

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a pant of a financial asset or pant of a group of similar
financial assets) 15 pomanly derecogmised (1.e., removed from the Group's statement of financial

position)when
. the rights 1o receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or
- the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an

obligation to pay the received cash flows in Adl without material defay to a third party
under a “pass-through” arrangement; amd either {(a) the Group has transferred substantially
all the nisks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transfemed nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transfemed control of the asset,

When the Group has transferred its rights (o receive cash flows from an assel or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk and rewards of
ownership of the assel. When it has neither transferted nor retained substantially all the nsks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group contimes to recognised the
transfermred asset to the extent of the Group's contimung involvement, In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on
a basis that reflects the rghts and obligations that the Group has retained.

Contimuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at
the lower of the onginal carmying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Group could be required to repay.

274 Impalrment of financial assets (polides under HEFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)

The Group recognises an allowance for ECL for financial assets carned at amortized cost. ECLs are
baszed on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate, The expected cash fows will include cash Qows from the sale of collateml
held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

For cash and cash equivalents and amount due from subsidiary, the Group applies a simplified
appreach in caleulating ECL s Therefore, the Group does not track changes in credit risk, bat instead
recogmises aloss allowance based om liftime ECLs at each reporting date, The Group has established
a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the economic enviromment,

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 90 days past due,
However, in certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset 1o be in defanlt when intemal
or external information indicates that the Group is unlikely 1o receive the outstanding contractual
amonnts in full before taking into accound any credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial
asset is wrilten off when there is no reascnable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows,

- 20 -
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M DECEMBER 2018

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.7 Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

175 Impalirment of financial assets (polides under HEAS 32 applicable before 1 January 2018)
Assers carried af amortised coss

The Group assesses al the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that
financial assel or group of Anancial assets 15 mparred. A financal asset or a group of financial assels
is impained and impairment losses are incumed onlby if there 15 objective evidence of impainment as a
result of one or more events that occurred after the intial recogrnition of the asset {a loss event) and
that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated foture cash flows of the financial asset or
group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated,

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables or held-lo-maturity
investments camied al amortised cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding futire credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s onginal
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance
account and the amount of the less 18 recognized in profit or loss. If a lean or held-to-maturity
investment has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the
current effective interest rate determined under the contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may
measure impaiment on the basis of an ingrument*s fair value nsing an observable market price.

If. in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as an improvement in the
debtor's credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognised impaimment loss is recognised in profit
or loss,

18 Offsetting finandal instruments (policies under HEFRS % applicable from 1 January 2008 and
HEKAS 3% applicable before 1 January 2018)

Financial assets and liabilities are offeet and the net amount reported in the statement of financial
position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on anet basis, or realize the asset and settle the liability simuftanecusly. The legally
enforceable dght must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal ¢ourse
of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptey of the Group or the counterparty.

29 Deposits and other receivables
Dreposits and other receivables are recognised intially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impaimment. A provision for
impairment of these receivables 1= established when there is objective evidence that the Group will
not be able to collect all amounts due according to the onginal terms of the receivables.

Ifthe settlement of the receivables is expected in one year or less, they are classified as current assets.
If not, they are presented as non-Curment assets.

-30-
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M DECEMBER 2018

2 Summary of significant accounting polides (Continued)
210 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other shonderm
highly liquid investments with onginal maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafls, Bank
overdrafts, if any, are shown in current liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position.

111  Share capital
Ondinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly atiributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

212 Pavables

Payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using, the
effective interest method.

Payables are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less. Ifnod, they ane
presented a8 non-current liabilities.

213 Current and deferred tax

The tax expense for the penod comprises current and deferred tax.  Tax 15 recogmsed in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, excepl to the extend that it relates to items
recogmised in other comprehensive income or directly in equaty, In thas case, the tax is also recogrmised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equty, respectively,

The current tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively emacted at
the balance sheet date in the countries where the Group's subsidiary operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to inerpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amownts expected to be paid to the tax authonties.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences arsing between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their camying amounts in the consolidated financial statements, However, the deferred
tax is not accounted for ifit arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other
than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit nor loss. Deferred tax is determined nsng tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related defemred
ta asszet 12 realised or the deferred tax habality 15 settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that fiture taxable profit or
taxable temporary differences will be available against which the deductible temporary differences

can be utilised.  Deferred tax lLiabilities are recognised in full in the consclidsed statement of
comprehensive income.
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CEOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M DECEMBER 2018

2 Summary of significant accounting polides (Continued)
213 Current and deferred tax (Continued)

Defemed tax 15 provided on temporary differences ansing on mvestments in subsidiaries, except where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable thet
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset curment
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred taxes assets and liabilities relate to taxes
levied by the same taxation authorty on either the taxable entity or different taxable entities where
there is an indention (o sedtle the balances on a net basis,

214 Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January 20018)

Revenue from coniracts with cusiomers
Fevenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of goods or services is transferred

to the customers af an amount that reflects the consideration to wiich the Group expects (o be entitled
in exchange for those goods or senvices.

When the consideralion in a contract includes a variable amount. the amount of consideration is
estimated to be the consideration to which the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring the
goods or services to the costomer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and
constrained until it 15 highly profable that a significant revenoe reversal in the amount of cumulative
revenue recognised will not occur when the associated uncenainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved,

When the contract contains a financing component which provides the customer a significant benefit
of fimancing the transfer of goods or services 1o the customer for more than ong year, revenug is
measured at the present value of the amount receivable, discounted wsing the discount rate that would
be reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group and the customer ol contract
inception. When the contract contains a financing component which provides the Group a significant
financial benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised under the contract includes the interest
expense accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest method. For a contract where the
period between the payment by the customer and the transfer of the promised goods or services is one
vear or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing componend,
using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15,

Revernue from other sonrces
Interest income is recognised on a time proporion basis using the effective interest method

When a recervable 15 impared, the Group reduces the carmying amound (o its recoverable amount,
being the estimated future cash flow discounting at original effective interest mte of the instiunent,
and continues unwinding the discount as interest income,

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established, it is probable that

the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.
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CEOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M DECEMBER 2018

2 Summary of significant acconnting polides (Continued)
215  Revenue recognition (applicable before 1 January 2018)

Revenue comprizes the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for provision of assel
management SETVICES.

The Group recognizes revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured and it is probable
that future economic benefits will flow to the entity.

Interest income is recognized using the effective interest method. When a receivable is impaired, the
Group reduces the camying amount to its recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash flow
discounted at the original effective interest rate of the instmment, and continues nnwinding the
dizscount as interest income. Interest income on impaired loan and receivables are recognised using
the original effective interest rate.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.
Expenses are recognised on an accrial basis,
116  Operating leases (as the lessee)
Leases where substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases mel of any incentives
received from the lessor are charged 1o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a
straight -line basis over the lease periods.
217 Employment benefits
{i) Bonus plan
The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised as a lability when the Group has a present
legal or constrctive obligation as a result of services rendered by employees and a reliable

estimate of the obligations can be made.

Liahalities for bonus are expected to be settled within 12 monthe and measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when they are settled.

{id Pension obligations
The Group paticipates in a mandstory provident fund scheme, the assets of which are held in
a separate trusteg-administrated fund, The pension plans are funded by payments from
employees and by the Group.
The Group's contrbutions to the mandatory provident fund scheme are expensed as incurmed.

This plan is funded by payments from both emplovees and the Group. The Group has no
further payment obligations once the contnbuiions have been paid.
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CEOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M DECEMBER 2018

2 Summary of significant accounting polides (Continued)
217 Employment benefits (Continned)
(it} Pension obligations {continued)

The employees of the Group's subsidiary which operates in Mainland China are required to
participate in a central pension scheme operated by the local municipal government.  This
subsidiary is required Lo contribute 5% of its payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.

{iii})  Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements (o anmual leave are recogmised when they acerue to emplovees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave as a resull of services rendered
by emplovees up to the balance sheet date,

Employee entitlements to sick leave and matermty leave are not recognised until the time of
leave.

(v}  Equity-settled share-based payment scheme

The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-based compensation plans, under which
the Group receives services from emplovees as consideration for equity instruments {options)
of the Group, The Far value of the employee services received i exchange for the grant of
the options is recognised as an expense. The total amount to be expensed is determined by
reference to the far value of the options granted;

- including any market performance conditions (for example, an entity's share price,

L excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting conditions
(for example, profitability, sales growth targets and remmining an employee of the entity
over a specified time period); and

- including the impact of any non-vesting conditions {for example, the requirement for
employess to savel.

The total expense is recognised over the vesting penod, which is the period over which all of
the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied.

In addition, in some circumstances employees may provide services in advance of the grant
date and therefore the grant date fair value is estimated for the purposes of recognising the
expense during the period between service commencement period and grant date.

Al the end of each reporting period. the Group revises its estinates of the number of options
that are expected to vest based on the non-marketing performance and senvice conditions. It
recogmises the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, with a comesponding adjustment to equity.
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CEOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M DECEMBER 2018

2 Summary of significant accounting polides (Continued)
218 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Group’s shareholders is recognised as a lability in the Group's financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Group's shareholders or directors,
where appropriate.

219  Rdated Parties
A party is consdered to be related to the Group ift

(a) the pamy is a person or a close member of that person's family and that person
(i) has control or joint control over the Group,
{ii} has significant influence over the Group; or
{iii}  is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or of a parent of the Group,

{b} the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:

(i}  the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(ii) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity {or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same thind party:

() one entity 1 a joint venture of a thard enfity and the other entity 15 an associate of the third
entity;

(v the entity is a post-emplovment benefit plan for the benefit of employvees of either the
Group or an énbity related to the Group:

(vi) the entity 15 controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a);

(vii) @ person identified in (2)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personmel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity);, and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a pan, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the parent of the Group.

Transactions with related parties are accounted for based on the nature and substance ofthe agreement
and financial effects are included in the appropriate asset, liability, income and expense accounts,

220 Provision

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive) has arizen as a result of a
past event and it is probable that a future cutflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation,

When the effect of discounting is matenal, the amount recognised for a provision is the present value
al the end of the reporting period of the fiMure expenditures expected 1o be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in profit or loss,
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CEOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M DECEMBER 2018

3 Finandal risk management

Firenetal visk foactors

The Group’s activities expose it to a varety of financial risks: market risk { including foreign exchange
risk, fair value and cash Now interest sk, and price nsk), credit and counterpany sk and liquidity
rigk. The Group's overall nsk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance. The
Group may use denvative financial instruments to hedge certain nisk exposures.

Risk management is carried out by the directors of the Group to identify significant risks, especially
such risks that may jeopardise the continued existence of the Group.

(a) Markel price risk

Market price risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrament will fluctuate as a result of changes
in market prices, whether those changes are cansed by factors specific to the individual instrument or
factors affecting all instruments in the market.

The Group has sigmificant shareholding in the investment fimds which are recogmnised 25 subadianes
i("“Subsidiary Funds") or financial assets at fair value through profit or loss or available-for-sale
financial asszets {together “Investee Funds™) of the Group. As a result, apan from exposing to the
market price nsk of the direct mnvestments of the Group, the Groupis also exposed tothe market poce
risk of the imvestment porifolio of the Subsidiary Funds through its significant holdings. The
investment portfolios of the Subsidiary Funds include the equity securities which are traded on the
PRC stock exchanges, and USD and RMB denonunated debd secunties i different geographocal
locations.

At 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, the Group's market nisk was affected by three main
components: changes in actual market prices. interest rate and foreign currency movements. Interest
rate and foreign currency movements are covered in Notes 3(b) and 3{e) below respectively. The
Group's market price risk is managed by seeking to moderate sk through selection of secunties
within specified limits.
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The table below summarises the Company's investment in the Subsidiary Funds as at year end:

Investment in Subsidiary Funds by the Company

- Listed exchange traded fund
- Unhisted investment funds

Total

018 2017

HE3S HES
4T36T64T 48,569,302
2744 14,067 301,046,472

321781714 M9.615774

The table below summarises the Group's direct investment in the Investee Funds and the imdirect
imvestment in equities, exchange traded fund and deld securities via investment in the Subsidiary

Funds as at year end,

Invesiment in Investee Funds

- Unlisted investment funds
- Listed investment funds

Total

Indirect investment through the Subsidiary Funds
= Listed equity investments
- Listed options
- Deln securities

Total

Derivative inancial Instruments
Unlisted investment products

Total financial assets at fair valoe through profit or loss

Avallable-for-sale financial assets

- Unlisted investment produocts

_3?-
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2018 2017

HES HES
105,339,579 94,242,721
46,900,217 311424
152,239,796 95,054,145
2018 2017

HES HES
83,900,004 101,610,307
T89.508 -
222412914 231,808,009
307,102,726 333478406
34,257 -
11,070,646 -
AT0A67 425 428,532,551
2018 2017

HES HES

- 10,132,803
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3 Finandal risk management (Continned)

(=) Market price risk (Continued)
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Az al 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, the Group invests in USD and RMB denominated
debt securities, USD and RMEB denominated equity securities and USD denominated options through
the Subsidiary Funds and the following table discloses the gecgraphic location exposure:

Financial assets af fair value through profit and 1oss

2018 2017

HES %o of NAV HEKS %o of NAV
Australia - - 21,985,744 4,71
China 105,043,956 20,82 174,671,917 37.39
Germany 26,075,136 517 - -
Hong Kong 99,929, 164 1980 4,009 298 186
Luxembourg 3429471 68 - -
Singapore 42,255,654 8.37 - -
Bermuda - - 15,568,093 333
Cayman - - 50,561,397 10.82
Japan - - 11,611,121 249
Korea - - 11,752,468 252
Virgin sland - - 18,865,443 4.04
Canada - - 7.775,293 166
United - - 6,431 883 1.38
Kingdom
United States 30,369 345 6,02 10,245,749 2,19
Tatal 307,102,726 Gk 86 333478406 T71.3%

Finaricial labilities at fair valoe throngh profit and loss

2018 2017
HKS % of NAV HEKS % of NAV
United States 212746 004 - -
Total 212746 004 = ¥
P ] ——— I E—
-38 -
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CEOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M DECEMBER 2018

3 Finandal risk management (Continned)

(=) Market price risk (Continued)

The Group's investments in the Subsidiary Funds and the Investee Funds are subject to their respective
terms and conditions and the offering documentation and are susceptible to market price nsk ansing
from uncentainties abow fture values of those Subsidiary Funds and the Investee Funds, All of the
Subsidiary Funds and the Investee Funds of the Group are managed by portfolio managers who are
compensated by the respective Subsidiary Funds and the Investee Funds for their services. Such
compensation generally consists of an asset based fee and a performance based incentive fee and is
reflected in the valuation of the Group's investment in each of the Subsidiary Funds and the Investee
Funds. The right of the Group to request redempiion of its investments in Subsidiary Funds and the
Investee Funds ranges in frequency from daily to monthly.

The tables below summarise the market price nsk sensitivity of the Group through its investments in
the Subsidiary Funds and the Investee Funds recognised as at 31 December 2013 and 31 December
2017, The analysis is based on the assumptions that the relevant prices of the securities in the relevant
risk variables increased or decreased by the percentage disclosed in the table below with all the other

varables held constant.
Azt 3 December 2008
T in the Subsidiary Funds by the Corpany
Erpact to the
consolidabed
stabernant of
commprehenar e
Fair vadus Feasenable pozable e
Subrsidiey Funds HES F.shewant nsh vaniahles il mrate HES
CEOP Select TIE Dollar 177,245,011 Cili Asia Brosd Bond - +1-3,237 542
Band Fund Index
CROP Chird Tt Shiort- AT I6744T Tl Chanese Gorarrenent . 1% #.115012
Term Bond ETF and Folicy Bark Bond 041
Ve Beboct Endex
CEOF Chira Intelhgence 02070 Mol spplicable (Mobe) = 1 +- 8718817
A -Bhiare Fund
UE Tech Stralegy Fund SXM62EE Mot mpplicable (Hote) - 10 +-527 Gue
321781714 W 12,509,060

.39.
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3

(a)

Finandal risk management (Conti nuned)

Market price risk (Continued)

Asat 31 December 2018

Investrment in the Invester Fands
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rpact b the
constikted
aternent of
Reasomble ofprehensr e
Fair valus Relevant nde paszile dufk m TG
L etoa Funde HES vanshles fate HES
Chin Scuth em Dragon T2.520 897 Nt applicable = 1 R4 &7, 22 ol
Dryraroc Fund - BMB Hote)
High Tield Bond Fund
CEOF Sirpleway Chira 164D 565 Hit applicable il 1% ., &R3 067
Vahe Elite Fund 5P (Hote)
C2OP Hong Mong Dollar e, 208 400 Zaminth Hong 1. 1A% kGG LD
Moy Mackat ETF Foong Duollar
Initerest
Seitlernent Fate
CEOF Global Cuamt 15,670,332 Kt applicable #1= ] e +l.] 567 033
Allccaten Pund 18P Hobe)
Other ETF a5 a7 Hat applicab e +- 100 40,5402
Habeh
Others 685 Hol applicable +: 108% 50,868
(Hotey
152, 239,796 #.15 223 980
Asat 31 December 2007
TevestrriEnt in e Subsidlary Fumds by the Company
Irrpact b the
consolidated
stalemnent of
oormpreheniT e
Fair wahis Rasonable posabla bt
Subsichary Funds HES Eeslewant nok vanahles sk o rate HES
CHOF Selnct TS Dollar 184,316,307 it Asia Broad Bond +- 4 +H-2 390585
Baond Fund Index
CBOP China T Shert- 48 589 302 iy Chinmess Borarmmeant = 1% W] 28,660
Term Bond ETF and Falvey Bank Bond -1
Tew Select Index
CEOF Chura Irtelhpance 114723545 Hod applicable (Hote) e 1% +.11,672, 597
A Fhare Fund
HRGITTE +-14,192,242
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CEOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M DECEMBER 2018

3 Finandal risk management (Continned)

(=) Market price risk (Continued)

Asg b 31 December 3007
Irvestrment in the Invester Fonds

Erpact o the
consolidted
staternent of

Fumasonab e comprehensy

Fuair value Fuelow ant misk pomsible it n RO

v estee Funds HES vanuh s b H¥E

China Sauthyam Dragon TE049 459 Hot applicable . 1004% 417, 604
Dy Fund - EME (Hate)

High Tield Bond Fund

CEOP Sinpleway China 18,193,262 Hit spplicabie +- 100% +-1,81% 324
Vale ElieFund P Hiobe)

Cther ETF B4 Hit applicsble +- 1% 31,142
Hote)

3054143 335 414

Mote: Management considers that these investments in the Subsidiary Funds by the Company and

Investee Funds are not directly correlated to any index. As such, relevant risk variables are not
considered as applicable.

-41-
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M DECEMBER 2018

3 Finandal risk management (Continuned)
(=) Market price risk (Continued)
The exposure (o investments in Subsidiary Funds and Investee Funds at for value by strategy

employed is disclosed in the following talde. These investments are included in financial assets af far
value through profit or loss in the consolidated statement of financial position.

A% 31 31 December 2013

Subskliary Funds
Het azset valae Investment
Wumber of of Enthestes Fured far vahie Yo of net abets of the
Strategy I esee Furds HES HES Gros
Fixes) moome z 50193 Million 223316658 A%
Equaty long/short 3 19112 Milleon PEAG3,056 12 13%
IZLTEETIA
Invester Funds
Het azzet valus Investmert
Hurnber of ol mwestes fund far vahte % of oot assets of the
Steatesy i estis furds HES HES (]
Fixes] moome 1 85 Millon 725920 807 i B4
Equaty lorgshert 4 1245 Mallen 32402682 G4
Inde traceg % 2.2, 798 kllon 468900217 Ll
152, 239796
As a3l December 2017
Subshlary Funds
Het assel valas Inywestiment
Rurnber of of Enwestes Fuind famr walus ¥ of net assets of the
Sirabesy Iny ees Fursds HEE HES Oreup
Fixed mooms F3 E3.201 by i Haens a0 45 g
Equaty lorgishart 1 155 haNun I T2R.045 25 R
HMEEI5TH
I
Investee Funds
Het azset valae Irwestment
Hurnber of of mwestes fnd far value Y5 of et aszéts ol the
Sirabegy nvestes fryds HEE HES Oroig
Fised siooms 1 28 Mllion TEMIA5D 15 31
Equaty lorgshort ] 131 Millhen 18193262 3.9%%
Indem irwcnig 3 12-56 Million 11424 Q%
95,054, 145
- 42 -
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M DECEMBER 2018

3 Finandal risk management (Continned)
() Markel price risk {(Continued)

There were exposures (o Company s direct investments representing over 5% of the Group's net assets
at reporting date. The table below summarises those investments.

01 2017
% of nel azsels %% of nel nssels
Name of the imvedments HES of the Group HES of the Group
CR0P Select US Dollar Bond Funed 177,549,011 353 184 316,507 395
China Southern Dragon Drynamic
Fund - RMB High Yield Bond Fund
{(“CNBE") TL910.897 14.5 76 i A59 163
CHOP China Ultra Short -Term Bond
ETF 47 367 647 a4 A48 569302 104
CROP China Intelligence A-Share
Funad ETABEATO 173 1167 29 565 50
CS0P Hong Kong Dollar Money
Market ETF A6, 204,400 i -

(L] Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the sk that the value of a financial instmment will fAuctoate due to changes in
market inderest rates.

The Group is exposed to risks associated with the effecis of fluctustions in the prevailing levels of
market interest rates on its interest-bearing financial assets and cash flows.

Ar 31 December 2018, the Group invests in Subsidiary Funds and Investee Funds, and the interest rate
risk exposure was HEKS301,617,203 (2017: HKS307,917 558). If interest rates had been 235 basis
points higher or lower with all other vanables held constamt, net assets attribatable to owner would
have been impacted by HKS$1,336,868 (2017: HKS769,794) higher or lower at 31 December 2018,

Asat 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2007, the bank balances ofthe Group of HK$305,393,873
(2017 HK$293.286,380) are placed at short term market inderest rate and the directors consider that
the Grouwp is not subject to significant amount of risk due to fluctuation in the prevailing levels of
miarket interest rates. The directors assessed that a 50 basis points change in interest rate wonld have
HK$1.533.847 (2017: HKS1,466,432) impact to the profit and loss of the Group.
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CEOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M DECEMBER 2018

3 Finandal risk management (Continned)
(L] Interest rate risk (Continued)

The following table details the Group's exposure (o inferest rate risk categonsed by the earlier of
contractual reprising or maturity dates.

As at 31 December 2018

Miatinty Mty hiabindy Hion-irfanes
up e 1 pear 1-5 ypemre xSy bearng Tekal
HKE HES HES HKS HES
Financlal Assels
Financial assets s fairvalus
thraisgh profit or loss 22T 9% AT 109,522 241 T4 2T 080 E02, 730,695 ATDAST A25
Cther recervables - - - 42,042 531 48,052,851
Cath and cash equivaiants 305454 073 . 305 454,073
Total Ninang s assets SEMAZD AR 106,322,241 34,778 0eh 150,783, M6 E24,004 345
Financiz] Lishilites
Firxncial labalitses at far vahie
threnigh probt ar ko . . . 2748 22145
Amount dus o Tnmediabe
haldmg company ! . . W3 395 43,395
Acorued lmbahdses end ofher
payables - - - 0,088,551 To0ZEEN
Chwidend paystle - - - 163 520,000 163,520,000
Mesoontrolhing irterets
denized fram mvestmmt
funds . - - 31,998,763 51,998,763
Total Mnancial Babilities - - - 26,703,757 2BE03.757
Total interest sensitivity gap 20420480 108522241 34271808
- 44 -
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M DECEMBER 2018

3 Finandal risk management (Continned)
(L] Interest rate risk (Continued)
As at 31 December 2017

Matusity Mabuity Maturity Hen-irdeces
Up b ] yeemr 15 years o § ems bearmg Total
HES HES HES HES HES
Financlal Asseis
Finaccial asedz o fair value
throisgh peafil or loes 0, 4T e o0, 707 052 1654 543440 120,614,203 43R 532,551
Available-for-sale firancial
Rypels 10,032 5203 = = = 10132800
Orther pecerrahles = = = B4, 135406 144, 135,406
Cuash and cash equiwalmts 29F 447 074 = = = 293447 014
Total Minanc il ascers 354,237 TE3 90,707 052 166,563 440 265,750,359 TR 248,674
Financial Lisbiliies
Aot dus b rmedate
hiablang comgany - - - gaa e GEg I
Aerrued libalfses snd other
pagsbles - - - 120,833,573 120,633,573
Dividend payable - = = 154 960,000 194, 20,000
Meom-controlhng irfereds
deriwed Erom mwestinent
fands = = - #5330 35,355,200
Totn] Mnancial Habilides - - - 3T BS99 3T 815,05
Total interest smisitivity gap 354,227,783 0,707,052 166,563 440

() Credit and counterparty risk

Credit and connterparty risk is the risk that an issuer or counterpany to a financial instrument will
cause the Group financial loss by failing to discharge its obligations. The Group seeks to minimise
this risk of loss by monitonng the selection of counterparties and by minimizing the reliance placed
omn individual connterpanties.

The Group maintaims a list of approved brokers selected to manage the nsk that a broker may fail and
lemd Lo a loss on trade.  All transactions in listed investments are settled on a delivery versus payment
brazis using approved brokers. The risk of default is considered minimal, as delivery of securities sold
is only made when the Group®s custodian banks have received pavment. Fora purchase, payment is
made once the securnties have been received by the Gronp's custodian banks. The trade will fail if
either panty fails to meet their obligation.

.45.
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M DECEMBER 2018

3 Finandal risk management (Continned)

() Credit and counterparty risk (Continued)
The Groupis also exposed o investments in debt secuniies as a1 31 December 2018 and 31 December
20017, The Manager will actively manage the portfolio of the Group, In case of credit rating
downgrading. the Manager will adjust the positions in the port folio using its credit analysis and rating
systems that are designed to manage credit risks.

The table below summarises the credit rating of the investment portfolio issued by credit rating
agencies as at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017:

Credit rating category of debt securities:

U B3
Credit rating agency Rating HES %o af net azsets
Moody Bl to Aa2 TE873,066 15.23%
S&F B-to A+ 100,380,017 20,09
Unrated 44,148,931 B75%
22412 914 44.07%%

2017
Credit rating agency Eating HES %6 of net azsels
Mooy Bl to Al 2490978 696
S&F B-to A+ 148,721,055 3184
Unrated 50,647,066 10,84
231,868,009 49.64

- 4 -
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(c)

Finandal risk management (Continned)

Credit and counterparty risk (Continued)
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The following tables summarnse the assets placed with counterparties az at 31 December 2018 and 31

December 2017 and their respective credit ratings

Cash and cash equivalents
Industrial and Commmercial Bank of China (Asa)

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Chima Merchants Bank Co. Lid

China Construction Bank Corp.

Hattong Intermnational Securities Company Limited

Bark of China (Henig Kong) Limited

HSBC Bank (China) Company Limited

Haiteng [International Futures Comgany Limited

inancial assets at fair valu 13
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limit
Citibank Europe plc (Formerly known as Citibank International

ple (Luxembourg Branch))

HEBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia) Limited
HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Treland) Limited
Brown Brothers Hariman & Co,

HSBC Bank (China) Company Limited

Haitong International Futures Company Limited
Futu Securities Intermational (Hong Kong) Limited
Chima Merchants Bank Co. Ltd

China Foreign Econory And Trade Trust Co., Lid

Available-for-sale fimmcial assels

China Construction Bank Corp.

China Foreign Econormy And Trade Trust Co., Lid
FREMEER LT

.,4?.
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2018 2017
HES HES
227,975 44 218,872,803
4,278,865 5,525,567
6,894,910 TAS8852
10,220.075 24,406,185
48777 504,206
20 T26,226 16,150,645
22 5TRBTS 20,278,122
3,269,781 -
305,393,873 293,286,380
165,731,789 183,585,650
72,920,897 76,049,459
03,115,586 18,193,262
BOA8L0%4 101,610,307
605,817 811,424
46,168,654 48,282.449
54,257 :
308,685
6847752 F
4,222 804
470467425 478 532,551
- 2,388 545
d 6456832
- 1.287.426
- 10,132,803




CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M DECEMBER 2018

3 Finandal risk management (Continned)

() Credit and counterparty risk (Continued)

Exposure to brokers and custodian banks as at vear end

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

China Construction Bank Corp.

China Merchants Bank

Citibank Europe Ple (Formerly known as Citibank International
ple (Lucembourg Bramch)y

Brown Brothers Haruman & Co.

Haitong International Sccurities Comparry Limited

HSBC Institutional Trest Services (Asia) Limited

HEBC Institutional Trust Services (Ireland) Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia)

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Cesporation Limited

HSBC Bank (Chinad Company Limited

China Foreign Economy and Trade Trust Co., Lid

Haitong Futures Intemational Comgaimy Limmited

Futu Securities Intemational (Hong Kong) Limited

UBS AG

it ratines of the brokers and custodian ba at vear end
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
China Construction Bank Comp.
China Merchants Bank
Citibank. Eurepe Ple (Formerly known as Citibank Intermational
ple (Lieembrourg Branch))
Brown Brothers Harmuman and Co.
Hartong [nternational Secunties Company Linited
HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia) Limited
HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Ireland) Limited
Industrial and Commmercial Bank of China (Asia)
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Lirited
HSBC Bank (China) Company Limited
Haiteng Futures International Comgarny Limited
Fuitu Securities Intermational (Heng Koeng) Limited
UBS AG
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2018 27

HES HES

195 458015 199,736,205

10,229,975 26,794,730

13,742 662 7,458,852

72920807 76,040 459

605,817 811,424

489,777 564 200

03 115586 18,193 262

80482 093 101,610,307

227975465 218872 803

4,228 865 5 5255487

68,747,529 8, 560,571

4,222.8% -

3,324,038 -

308685 =

1375501 -

777,236,799 724,207 476

2018 2017

A At

A A

BRE+ BEE

At At

At At

Unrated® Unrated®

Unirated? Unrated?

Unirated? Unirated *
A A

AA- AA-

At At

Unrated® -

MHA -

At -

Information of the above credit ratings are taken from Fitch, Moody and Standard & Poor's (5&P)

long-term issuer credit rating,

! Haitong Intemational Securities Group Limited and Haitong Futures Imternational Company
Limited, which are the immediate holding company of Haitong International Secunties Company

Limited, were rated as BEB (2017: BB-) by S&P.

- 48 -

282/339



EDINETOOOO
OO00D0O00o0O00D0bDO000DO0Odnoo(E27318)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
3 DECEMBER 2018

3 Finandal risk management (Continmed)

[ ] Credit and counterparty risk (Continued)

* HSBC Holdings Ple, the ultimate holding company of HSBC Institutional Trust Services { Ireland)
Lirmited and HSBC Instituiional Trod Services (Asia) Limited, was rated as A (20017 AA-) by 5&P.

The maximum exposure to credit sk at vear end date is the carrying amount of the financial assets
as shown on the consolidated balance sheet.

(@)  Liquidity risk

The Group iz exposed to lquidity nsk when it enconmers difficuliy in meeting obligations associated
with financial liabilities. It manages liguidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents.

The Group is exposed o daily redemptions of units in the Investee Funds, The Funds invest the
majority of its assets in securities that are traded in an active market which can be readily disposed of.

The table below analyses the Group's financial assets and liabilities into relevant matunty groupings
based on the remaining period at the reporting date Lo the contractual maturily date as al 31 December
2018 and 31 December 2017, The amounts dizclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted
cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their camying balances, as the impact of discounting

15 nod sigm ficant.
AL3] December 2018
Lsze i Ho rmatirdyy
& months Ferrod Total
HES HES HES
Financlal Liabilities
Financial labilshes 3 fuir wadus through
profit or losz 21246 212 746
Amoust diss to mnmediate holdng compary 943,395 043,355
Acomped lmbglitees and ofher Pu_,l:lbt-e-: &R B2 430 - SR A A0
Diwidend paysble 163,520,000 - 143,520,000
Mem-aintrslhng rerets darvved fram
irwostment funds - PLATER AR
Totnl Minancial Habilitdes 234,558,571 S1.990.T65 204 557 338
Total Minancial assets B2 004 340 = 24 00 3G

._49.
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M DECEMBER 2018

3 Financial risk management (Continwed)
(i) Liguidity risk (Continued)
AL 31 December 2017

Lessthmn Ho matirgy
& onths Period Total
HES HEX HES
Financlal Lishilities
Amunt dise b mmediste holdng cocnparey 668, 20% - 668,299
Accribed liabalite=s and other payabbes 120,833,573 - 120:633,573
Diwidend payable 1.5, DU50, 000 = 158 50, 000
Hen-controlbing inbarests danved Fom
wreddrrent fusds = 55353227 55353207
Total Mnancial liabiliies 16461872 55333227 ITLEIS 0%

Total linencial nsseis EIR245674 = BTE 245,674

(3] Foreign exchange risk

The finctional curréncy of the Group is Hong Kong dollars (“HE dollars™). The Group is therefore
exposed to foreign exchange risk, as the value of the assets denominated in other currencies will
fluctuste due to changes in exchange rates,

The Group's transactions, assets and liabilities are mainly denominated in United States dollars (“US
dollars™ ), HE dollars, Renminbi ("EMB”), Euro ("EUR™) and Australian dollar (" AUD™). Assets and
liabilities denominated in US dollars is not considered as subject to foreign exchange nsk as it i
curently pegeged (o the HE dellars within a narmow range.

The table below summarises the Group’s monetary and non-monetary exposure to currency risks,
excluding forward foreign exchange contracts and the impact on net assets should the currencies have
strengthened or weakened by 500 basis poinis or 5% against the Hong Kong dollars, with all other
variables remaining constant, as at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017,

At 31 December 2018

Original currendies REMB EUR AlLD
HES HEKS HES

Assets

Monetary assets 133 579 889 358,510 4,214,232

Hor-monetary assets 136,527,201 10,136,468 -

Liabilities

Mon-monetary liabilitics (1,543,519 . -

Mel exposure 268,563,571 10,494 978 4,214,232

-ED0 -
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M DECEMBER 2018

3 Finandal risk management (Contnued)
(e Foreign exchange risk {(Continued)

At 31 December 2018

Original ourrencles RMB EUR AUD
HES HEKS HES
Impact on net assets atiributable to owner
Estimated basis point change m the relevant
exchange rate of the foreign curmency against 5000 basis
Hong Kong dollars points 500 basis points 500 basis points
Monetary 0,078,994 17,926 210,712
More-monetary 6,749,184 506,823 -
Al 31 Decembrer 2007
Original currencies RMB EUR
HES HKS
Assels
Monetary assets 100,268,896 44074
Mo=rmonetary assets 236,11 2469 10468417
Liabilities
Mon-monetary liabilitics (952.713) -
et exposure 335,428,652 10512491
Impact on net assefs atiributable to owner
Estimated basis point change in the relevant exchange
rate of the foreign cumency against Hong Kong
dollars 500 basis points 500 basis points
Monetary 5013445 2,204
Mor-monetary 11,505 623 52341

n Capital management
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure 1o reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, retum capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

~EY =
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M DECEMBER 2018

3 Finandal risk management (Continned)
(n Capital management (Continued)

As ar 31 December 2018, the Company is licensed to carry out regulated activities of type 1 dealing
insecurities (" Type 170 type 4 advising on securities {Type 47 and type 9 assel management * Type
9 under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Crdinance (2017: Type 1, Type 4 and Type 9). As
a result, the Company is subject to capital requirements on the paid-up capital and liquid capital and
files financial returns with the Securitics and Futures Commission on a monthly basis,

(s} Fair value estimation

The fair valne of financial as=ets traded in active markets (such as publicly traded dervatives and
trading securities) are based on quoted market prices at the close of trading on the reporting date. The
Group ufilises the last traded market price for both financial assets and liabilities.

An active market is a market in which transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient
frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

HEKFRS 13 requires the Group to classify fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that
reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value Merarchy has
the following levels:

Quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1.

Inputs other than quoted prces included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or

liability, either directly {that is, as prices} or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) {level 2).
. Inputs for the assel or labibty that are nol based on observable market data (that 15,

unobservable inputs ) (level 3).

The level in the fair value herarchy wathin which the far value measurement 15 categonsed in its
entirety iz determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement in its entirety. For this purpose, the significance of an input is assessed against the fair
value measurement in its entirety, IF a fair value measwrement wses observable inputs that reguire
sigmificant adjustment based on ineobservable inputs, that measurement 15 a level 3 measurement.
Assessing the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires
judgment, considering factors specific to the asset or lability,

The determination of what constitutes “observable” requires significant judgment by the Group. The
Group considers observable data to be that market data that 15 readily available, regularly distribuged

or updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprietary, and provided by independent sources that ane
actively imvolved in the relevant market.

.52.
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M DECEMBER 2018

(g

Finandal risk management (Contnued)
Fair value estimation (Conftinued)

The following table analyses within the fair value hierarchy the Group's financial asseis and liabihities
(b class) measured at e value 2t period’yvear end date;

Level ] Level 2 Level 3 Total
HES HEK% HKS HEKS
Al 31 December 2018
Assels
Financial assets at fair value throush
profit or loss:
Listed equity imvestment B3, 900,004 - - B3, S000004
Listed investment funds 46,900,217 . = 46,500,217
Unlisted investrent fimds - 108,339,579 - 105,339,570
Dbt securities - 222412914 - 222412914
Listed options T&H BOS - - TEO 808
Derivative finaneial investment 54,257 - - 54,257
Unlisted investment products - 11,070,646 - 1107646
Total 131,644,286 338823139 . 470467425
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
HES HEE HES HEKS
At 31 December 2017
Assels
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss:
Listed equity inmvestment 0,730,127 - 10,580, 180 100,610,307
Unlisted investment funds = 88 054,145 = 0% 054,145
Dbt securities - 231 868,009 - 231.858.099
Available-for-zale financial as=ets:
Unlisted investment products - 10,132,803 - 10,132,803
Total 0,730,127 337,085,047 i BRO 1RO A38.665.154

Investments which values are based on quoted market prices in active markets, and therefore classified
within level 1. includes listed equity investments and exchange traded finds. The Group does not
adjust the guoted price for these instruments,

Financial instraments that traded in markets that are not considered to be active i are valued based

on gquoted market prices, dealer quotations or alternative pricing sources supporied by observable
inputs such as equities and foreign cwrrency contracts are classified within level 2,
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M DECEMBER 2018

3 Finandal risk management (Contnued)
() Fair value estimation (Conftinued)

Investments classified within level 3 have significant wnobservable mpors, as they wade
infrequently,

As at 31 December 2018, level 3 investment held by the Group amounted to HKSNil (2017:
HKS10.880. 180},

(h) Transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy

Transfer between levels of the far value hierarchy are deemed to have occurred at the beginming of
the reporting period.

The mvestments classified as level 3 relates (o secunties which were suspended as at 31 December
2017, No investments were classified as level 3 as at 31 December 2018, Dunng 31 December 2018,
there have been transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy due to resumption of trading.

The following table includes a roll forward of the amounts for the yvear ended 31 December 2018 and
year ended 31 December 2017 for financial instruments classified within level 3:

28 2017

HKS HES
Orpening balance 10,880,150 -
Purchases 576,392 9544, 049
Sales (5, 760,537) 11,325,052)
Transaction cost {18.470) (2,507)
Realised gain/(loss) 1702912 (140,595)
Wet unrealised (loss)/gain (2,832,049) 2,803,685
Transfer out due to resumption of trade (547.128) -
Closing balance - 10,880,180
Total net unrealised gain for investments held at financial year - 2803685

end
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M DECEMBER 2018

4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The Directors make estimates and assumptions concerming the fiture, The resulling accounting
estimates may not equal the actual results, The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk
of cansing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities are outlined below:

Investments in ofher investment funds

The Groups investments in investment funds are stated with reference to the net asset valne provided
by the respective administrators of the investment funds as determined by the Directors. If the net
asset value of the investment funds is not available or the Directors consider that such net asset value
is not reflective of fair value, the Directors may exercise their judgement and discretion to determing
the fair value of the investment funds. The Directors consider that the above valuation approach is the
best estimate of fair value of the investment funds.

Invesiments in derivative financial indmimenis

The Group may, from time to time, hold financial instruments that are not quoted in active markets,
such as over-the-counter derivatives. The Group will receive the prices directly from the executing
brokers for OTC securities on fair values of such instruments. During the yvear ended 31 December
2018, the Company had held OTC derivatives in the form of foreign cumrency forward contracts which
are quoted in active markets, The Company did net hold any derivative financial ingtruments as at 31
December 2017,

In cases where the financial instrument 15 quoted in more than one stock exchange, the last traded
price from the stock exchange which the security is traded on is taken,

5 Financal instruments by category

Apart from finaneial assets at fair value through profit or loss as disclosed in the consolidated balanee
sheet which are classified as held-for-trading, all other financial assets as disclozed in the consolidated
balanee sheet, ineluding other receivables, deposit and cash and cash equivalents, are categorised as
“loans and receivables”™.

Apart from finaneial liabilities ar fair value through profit or loss as disclosed in the consolidated
balance sheet which are classified as held-for-trading, all other financial liahilities as disclosed in the
consolidated balance sheet, including amount due to immediate holding company, accrued liahilities
and other payables, and amount due to third party investors are categorised as “other finanoal
liahilities",

_55_
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M DECEMBER 2018

& Current and deferred taxation
(a) Tax expense

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2017 16.5%) on the edimated
assessable profit for the year,

2018 X017
HEKS HKS
Hong Kong profits tax — Current tax 7.803,793 15,325415

Deferred tax relating to the origination and reversal of

temporary differences (Note 6(b)) (245,039 5,958,387
Cverprovision of prior years - (3.554,173)

Tax expenses 7.558,754 17, 729629

The tax on the Group's profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that wonld anse using the
tax rate of the home country of the Company as follows:

018 2017
HES HES
Profit before tax 46,544,039 153,939,872
Tax calculated ot local rate of 16.5%6 (2017 16.5%) TET9.76T 25,408,329
Income not subject to tax (6,148, 103) (5,220,714}
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 6,015,703 1,319,384
Overprovision of prior years - (3.554.173)
Deferred tax relating to the origination and reversal of
temporary differences (Note 6(b)) (245,039} -
Others 256426 (223,197}
Taxation charge 7.558,75 17,729,625

.55.
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M DECEMBER 2018

& Current and deferred taxation (Continned)

() Deferred taxation

s 037
HES HES
Dreferred 1ax asseis / (liabilities)y To4,141 (4,420,744)

The movement of the Group’s deferred tax assets/(liabilities) durng the yvear is as follows:

Accelerated tax Unrealised gain

deprecialion 01 IVESTMENLS Total
HES HES HEKS
Atl January 2017 126,642 1411001 1.537.643
Credited/(charged (o the
consolidated statement of
comprehensive income 332,460 (6.290,847) {5.958,38T)
At 31 December 2017 458,102 (4.379.846) (4,420,744
Effect of adoption of HKFRS & - 4,879,846 4,875,846
Atl January 2018 459,102 - 459,102
Credited to the consohdated
statement of comprehensive income 245039 - 245,039
Al 31 December 2018 T4, 141 - Tid,141
- 5? -
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M DECEMBER 2018

T Property and equi pment

Leaschold
Fumitare Orffice improves
and fixtures et panend ments  Motor vehicle Total
HES HES HEKS HES HES
Year ended
31 December 2018
Opening net book amount 118,568 1453218 B33 968 BSE,T17 3264471
Currency translation & ferences - 16,171 4 542 (150034) 15670
Adklitions - 511079 204,000 - TI5079
Digpreciation (92,160) (750867 {1,055, E38) (35, 463) (2.234,12E)
Diguosal - (262,181) (6,672} - (268.953)
Closing net ook ameom 26,408 RITSZ0 - 508,220 1512148
At 31 December 2018
Cosl 5118 3.3091 360 B AGT 096 1713510 16,877,084
Accumuloted deprediation (67,710} (500 3,B40) (5,467 098) (1,205.290) (15,364,936)
Nt book anwunt 26,408 PTTIZ0 - S08I20 1512048
Year ended
31 December 2017
Opemng net book amount 217 403 1368 466 1238 569 1107 855 5861793
Currency translation & ferences - 20,204 I TO4 43833 103441
Adkditions - 173,240 - - 173,240
Depreciation (@B, E25) (L10R.69Z) (144430 5) (322171} (2,974,003)
Closing net book amoun 11B.568 1AS3I1E EXM 068 EEET1Y 24471
Al 31 December 2017
Cost T51LE 57T12M EAN0Z10 1,741 447 16 557,106
Accumulabed depredation (586 550 (4318.113) (7.505,242) (BE2, 730} {13,202 635)
et book amount 118368 1483218 EXAD6E B5E,T1T 3264471

.55.

292/339



CHEOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

EDINETOOOO

OO00D0O00o0O00D0bDO000DO0Odnoo(E27318)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M DECEMBER 2018

B Investment in subsidiaries and associates

{al Trvestment in prineipal subsidiaries

The following is a list of principal subsidiarnes at 31 December 2018:

Hape

DEHF & Co. Led

CIOP et

Limmitad

CROP Indioes
Cez=pany Limied

S0P Asmet

Lasated

CIOPEdect LIS
Drallar Bon Fund

CHOP Chisa Wera
Hheet:Term Bond
ETF

CE0P China
[ieihgence A
Share Fusd

U5 Teck Srategr
Fuma

Bnsh Virpm

Heng Kong

Hang Eong

lretand

Enzopal sgvities

Te provade nd-licence for uee aff
el

Te provade imvritmest mndgrenen
P

Te prevade irve stment managrenend
servces

Te prowde investmest managrenent
sgWoey

levented & the Greater Ot Regioa s
ac e Jong form and ®abde income and
cigtal growth

Ieweand in the PRC Govermanent and.
Polscy Bank Bosdyinciuded in e Inde
Heeugs the ROFH invertment qooty
grambad b the Marager by the SAFE

[evemed a Clans A-Shaees hiated on the
PR.C Stock Exchanges throagh the
Ievesiment Masagers LQFT quots 1
ahieve medam [ Jong-term capitd
mppreciaan

Izvraed in US laried fech stocks and
liged nngle Fincks pat optioos to acheeve
Tesg-erzn eagEtad dppresation and
contral the man meam foss
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M DECEMBER 2018

B Investment in subsidiaries and associates (Continued)

{al fvestments in principal subsidiaries {Contimed)

The following is a list of principal subsidiarnes at 31 December 2017:

Hane

DHF &Co. Lad

CEOP [mvertment
Istesnatignad
Lazgted

Shesshen (hashoe
CHOP Aszes
Mansgemend
Limsitad {Habs)h

CEOPElect US
Brallar Bond Fusd

CECT China Uk
Sheat-Term Bond
ETF

CE0P China
Isteiligence A
Share Fund

ety
eamerlog

Hang Eong

Heng Kong

irtana

Enzapal sdmbies

Te poade nib-hcence for use of
trafemark

Ta provwsde irvestmisst manEgeer
Lapito

T prowsde arsed saanagernent el
ireEmend ConreEancy EraoeE

Ievested i the Creater Chera: Region i
ackzeve o trrm and gable income and
tigral gronth

[Evescd in the PRC Gowerrdrts el
Polacy Bank Bosdzincluded in the Ind et
Erazted o the Minagei by e SAFE

[rveested i Chana A-Shares histed on fhe
PRC Stock Exchuages theough the
Investment Manager"s ROFIl quata to
akevemmednm o long e capied
pprcidion

Exodin elumicd
shares held

1 irrued share wish pas walue of
HERI

20,000,000 isroed thare wth par
valug of CHYL

5000, D3 5 qued upred wath puar
value of CHYI

EATE 104 ot of B, T22, 82 pprued
Tedeermatle pRmOpIng WL Wh
oo par value

27T gt of 285 000 mepeed
redeematls partap Ring ks wih
52 par valus

46, 844 out of 651,41% mreed
redermiable pamaping wn wh
2 par value
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Mote: During the vear 31 Decernber 2018, the Group disposed the Shenzhen Qianhal CSOP Asset Management Lirmited,
which iz an indirectly owned subsidiary.
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CHEOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M DECEMBER 2018

& Invesiment in subsidiaries and assocates (Contlnued)
& Thvestment (i associales

The associates of the Group and the Company as at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, which
the Directors consider they are material to the Company, are as follows:

Pace of businem!
country of Habuare of Meazremens
Hame of ratity ARTpOT At o Y ol ovmmrilsp antorest ietaondtEp urthod Far valus
2018 a7 & a7
£ % HES HEE
CHOP Heng Keng Deiter Hazg Kong 158 A Axeriae Farvalue 48,554,400
Momey Market ETF
Chena Ssuthers Dmagan Limresnbausg 5.1 LEE R Amociae Far value TLRZR 50T T MR A%
Dyeamec Fomd « RMB High
Yield Bord Fund
CE2OP Sempleway Chanm Caman 1832 1288 Ampciae Far value 16430 865 18 183, 383
Vilue Eiwte Fand 5P
C2OP Olabal Qoase Cagrrnass LEH - Assotide Fasr value IRET0 Iz

Allecageon Pund [ 3P

The tables below provide summarised unandited financial information for those associates that are
material to the Group. The information disclosed reflects the amounts presented in the unandited
financial statements of the relevamt associates, and not the Group's share of those amounts. The
unandited financial statements of CSOP Hong Kong Dollar Money Market ETF is prepared in
accordance with HKFRS: the unandited financial statements of China Southerm Dragon Dynamic
Fund ~RMB High Yield Bond Fund is prepared in accordance with Luxembourg generally accepted
accounting principles (*Luxembourg GAAP”) relative to undertakings for collective investments; the
unaudited financial statements of CSOP Simpleway China Value Elite Fund SP is prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reponting Standards (“IFRS™) and the unaudited financial
statements of CSOP Global Quant Allocation Fund I 5P is prepared in accordance with IFRS.

Chana Seathern Dragon
CEOP Hong Fong Dallar Crmarmse Fund - EMB CEOP Sunplewsy China CEOP Glebal Chant
Meoney Makat ETF High Tield Boned Fand ‘Wabse Elste Fund 3P Allocation Funed [ 5P
Unsudited Audibed  Unaedided Audrbed Tinansdited Aasdibed Uriandited HAuzdibed
g 27 ima 7 il £ o Iina 207
HES HES HECS HES HES HES HES HE%
Summarnized balmnce shesd
Current meels 3,197,335013 = §Tlesdls  SMAIETII LIEeSciadd  8hdeialy  laidenEd -
Current Eabilies 1,585,087 = lRagrte 2090438 SLEN 08 29 18,039 -
Summanzed datement of comprehermve income
He moreazs nned
assets For the year 16555484 = (7020445 To0S 527 a2 S0 e TOC5STT 1a035
=61 =
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Available-Tor-sale financial assets
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Asat 31 December 2017, the Group invests in Chima Construction Bank Investment Products and the

trest including China Foreign Economy And Trade Trust Co,, Ltd

and #IESTIEG R T, as well

which seek to achieve its investment objective by investing in debt instruments and money market

instruments.

Upen adoption of HKFRS &, the Group designated those financial assets onginally classified as
available-for-sale investments to financial assets through profit or loss. The available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve of HK3578.625 was recognised in retained eamings as at 1 January

2018, Refer to Note 2.1(a)1) for detmls,

10 Prepayment, deposits and other receivables

The carrying amounts of other receivables, which approximate to their fair values, are as follows:

2018 2017

HES HES

Rental deposits 5,593,690 4,925,989
Management fee and performance fee receivable 33015235 94,052,906
Prepayments 1048, 235 1,835,167
Amount dug from broker 1,375,501 8435016
Interest receivable 3,326,347 4,243,160
Other accounts receivable 4,742,078 34,478,335
49 101,050 147,970,573

Included i the Company’s management fee and performance fee receivable were debtors with
camying amounts of HK$33.015,235 which were not yvet due and fully performing.

There was no impairment for management fee and performance fee receivable as of 31 December

2018. The Company does not hold any collateral over this balance.
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M DECEMBER 2018

11 Share capital

MNotes Number of
Issued and fully paid shares  Share capital
HES
As at 1 January 2017 251,333,333 284,266 666
Share repurchase (a) (53,333,333) -
As al 31 December 2017,
1 January 20018 and 31 December 2018 200,000,000 284,266,666

(a)  ©Omn 3l August 2017, the Group bought back 53,333,333 shares held by two top management
persommel at a consideration of HK$84,266 666, The Group bought back the shares by making
payments for the buy-back through the distributable profits of the Group. Hence, the number
of share has been reduced by 53,333,333 while the share capital remained unchanged,

12 Dividend

On 12 March 2019, the Company declared final dividend distribution in an aggregate amount of
HKS218,000,000 to the shareholders of the Group,

HES 104,800,000 were declared on T November 2017, and HK3 163,520,000 of dividend payable were
outdanding as at 31 December 2018 (2017; HKE194, 960,000,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M DECEMBER 2018

13

Cash generated from operations

(a) Reconciliation of profit before tax to net cash generated from operating activities;

Ooooooooooooooooooad

207
HES

153,085,872

2,974,003
(16,533.913)
{1,639,720)

578,625

2,824,011
53,638,380
{98,394,132)

(1.041.694)
42,958,188

6,970,252

2018
HES
Profit before tax 46,544,035
Adjustments for:
= Depreciation {Note 7) 2,234,128
- Interest income (18,373,192
- Dividend income (1,261,001}
- Change in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets -
= Disposal of property, plant & equipment 268,953
- Disposal gain on subsidiary (1,279.503)
- Decrease in available-for-sale financial assets 10,132,803
= Decrease i financial as=ets @ fair value to profit and
loss 18,025 8a6
= Decrease/(increasze ) in other receivables 96539977
= Decrease in margin deposit and cash at prime broker 212,746
- Increase/{ decrease) in amount due to immediate holding
COTpanY 275,006
= {(Decrease)increase in accred liabilities and other
payables (50,764,836)
= (Decrease) increase in amount due to third pany
INVeslors (9,295,709
Cash generated from operating activities 93,259,367

146,323,872

{b) Reconciliation of non-controlling interests derived from investment fimnds

2007
HES

96,980 341
(30,240.952)

10,808,713
(29.165.127)

(5.087.242)

11,745,047
312,447

2018
HE:
At 1 January 55,353,227
Financing cash flows:
Payment of redemption of shares of subsidiary funds (3,855,628)
Proceeds from subscription of shares of subsidiary fimds 9.796,875
Purchase of additional interest of subsidiary fumd -
Mon-cash transactions:
Recognition of a subsidiary fund 9632061
Derecogmition of a subsidiary fund -
Change in unrealised (lossy'gain aitributable to the non-
controlling interests derived from investment fiunds (18.925414)
Exchange differences (2.356)
At 31 December 51,998,765

55,353,227
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M DECEMBER 2018

14 Revenue from contracts with customers
2018 2017
HEKS HES
oniracts with cusiomers
- Management fee income (Mote 18(b)) 261,006,570 286,110,305
- Performance fee income (Mate 18(h)) 2,008,033 58,341,772
= Advizory fee income (Mote 13(a)) 22.271.550 24,173,041

285,287,193 369,125,118
Cther income — distibution fee income 9,508,540 1,893,577

294,795,733 AT1,018.695

Revenue from other source
Cher income 1,279,503 -

The performance oblipation of all reveime from contract with customers is satisfied over time as
services are rendered and payment is doe upon agreed payment terms. The performance income 15
varahle consideration crystalised at last penod end date of each investment product managed b the
Company. The amounts discloszed above do not include vanable consideration which is constrained.

15 MNet (losses) gains on Minandal assets and liabilities at Tair valoe through profit or loss

2018 2017
HKS HKS

Change in unrealised (losses Vgains in value of investments (33.014,913) 16,676,037
Met realised (losses ) gain on sale of investment (17.356,454) 35,702,772

(50,371,367 52,378,800
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M DECEMBER 2018

16 Operating expenses

2018 2017
HES HES

Employee benefit expenses (including directors’
emoloments) 104.246,234 174,937,569
Selling expenses & brokerage commission 30,056,667 35,648,522
Operating lease rental 19,378,084 18,005,262
Legal and professional fees 1,746,081 934,652
Fund operating expense 12,884,675 11,604,134
Advertising fees 7015763 8,965,305
Enfertainment expense 2,157,347 2,554,835
Travelling expense 3,022,729 3,225 7M™
Drepreciation {Note 7) 2,234,128 2,974,003
Auditor's remuneration 804,242 429,530
Insurance expenses 415,848 66,537
Management fee 249,121 275330
Trustee fee 848,305 561,067
Transaction costs 1,039,262 M01,742
Directors” fees 83,862 75,088
Other operating expenses 27,858,320 30,766,313

214,040,668 292425683

17 Commitments

The Group leases office, staff quarter and director's quarter under non-cancellable operating lease
agreements.

The future aggregate mimmum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows;

2018 017

HES HKS

Mot later than one year 16,931,317 9,150,150
Later than one year but not later than five years 25.221,132 -
42152449 9,150,150

18 Related party transactions

Parties are considered 1o be related (o the Group if the Group has the atahty, directly or mdirectly. to
control the party or exercize significant influence over the pany in making financial and operation
decisions, of vice versa, of where the Group and the pany are subject to common control of common
sigmificant influence. Related pamties may be individuals or other entities,
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M DECEMBER 2018

18 Related party transactions (Continued)

The table below summarises the transactions with related parties of the Group:

Motes 2018 2017

HKS HEKS

Drirectors” emolment 20 12,0000, 0 50,156,004
Related party transactions during the vear:

- Audvisory fee income {a) 1709, 120 -

- Management fee and performance fee income [L1}] 254,731,263 323,270,081

- Consultancy fee expense (c) 1,185,563 1,155,461

Related panty transactions as af year end:
= Amount die to immediate holding ¢ompany {c) 943,395 665,299

{(a) Advisory fee income

The amount represents advisory fee income received from China Southem Fund Management
Co. Lid., the immediate holding company of the Group, for the provasion of the advisory senace.

{b) Management fee and performance fee income

The Group received the management fee and performance fee income in the capacity of a
fimd manager.

(c) Consultancy fee expense and amount due to immediate holding company

The amount due o immediate holding company represents the consultancy fee expense paid
to the inmmediate holding company.

The amounts due to immediate holding company are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed
repayment terms.
19 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents of HK$305484,073 (2017, HK3293,447 9 14) reprezent cash in hand and
deposits held with banks as at 31 December 2018,

The Group maintans segregated trust accounts with authorised financial institutions as a result of its
normal business transactions. As at 31 December 2018, client monies not ctherwise dealt with in these
financial stalements and treated as off-balance sheet iem of the Group amounted to HEKS%87, 907
(2017 HKS15.966,474),

- &y -
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M DECEMBER 2018

20 Benefits and interests of directors

(a) Drirectors’ emoluments

2018 2017
HES HES
Emoluments peaid or receivable in respect of
directors” services as directors of the Company
and it submidiary underakings:
Directors” fee - -
Salary and fixed bonus 3,000,000 37,256,000
Discretionary bomses &, 00, 000 12, 500,00
Expenses - quarter - 400,000
12,000,000 50,156,000

(b Drirectors’ retirement benefits

Mo retirement benefits and other retirement benefits were paid by the Company to the director
during the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 in respect of the services as a director of
the Company and its subsidiaries and other services in connection with the management of
the affars of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking respectively.

() Drirectors” termination benefits
Mo termination benefits were paid by the Company to the directors as compensation for the
eardy termirmtion of the appointment by the Company, subsidiaries of the Company and the
comtrolling shareholder China Southem Fund Management Co, Lid., the immediate holding
company of the Company For the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017,

(dj Consideration provided to thind parties for making available directors® services

Mo considerations were provided by the Company to thind paties for making available
directors’” services during the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017

(e) Directors” material interests in transactions, arrangements or contracts
No significant transactions, arrangemenis and contracts in relation to the Company®s business
to which the Company was a party and in which the directors of the Company had a material

interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or a1 any time during
the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017,

- 68 -
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M DECEMBER 2018

21 Balance sheet and reserve movement of the Com pany

2018 2017
HES HEKS
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 848,243 1,986,264
Investments in subsidianes, at cost 25 346,630 25,346,616
Deferred tax asset T4, 141 -
26,899 014 27,332,880
Current assels
Financial assets at fair value throngh profit or loss 474,075,767 95,054,145
Investiments in subsidianes — available-for-sale - 349,615,774
Amounis due from subsidiaries 9465 653 5,746,578
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 36,746,241 127,594,145
Cash and bank balances 232,244,910 219,988,969
752,532.571 TH7.999.611
Total assets 779,431,585 825,332.491
EQUITY
Equity attributable to the owners of the Company
Share capital 284,266,666 284 266,666
Other reserves - 29,574,827
Retained earnings 230,638,121 156,739,768
Total equity 514,904,787 470,581,261
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Current tax habilities 35,617,591 30.681.946
Amounts due to immediate holding company 943,395 668,299
Agcrued liabilities and other payables 64,445,812 115,020,241
Dividend payable 163,520,000 194,960,000

264,526,798 350,330,486

Mon-current liabilities

Defermed tax halahties - 4,420,744
Total liabilities 264,526,708 554,751,230
Total equity and Habilities 779,431,585 §25,332.4%1

The balance sheet of the Company were approved by the Board of Directors on 12 March 2019 and

was signed on its behal £
Ding, Chen Zhang Gaobo
Director Director
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M DECEMBER 2018

1 Balance sheet and reserve movement of the Com pany (Continued)

(a) Reserve movement of the Compary
Retained  Other reserves

Camings
HES HEKS

At 31 December 2017
At 1 Januoary 2017 241,684,575 (5,757,369
Profit for the vear 93,818,859 -
Dividends declaration (104, 800,000) -
Share repurchase (78963 666) {(5,303,000)
Change in fair value of investments in subsidiaries —
available-for-sale - 40,635,196
At 31 December 20017 156,739,768 20,574,827
At 3]l December 2018
At 1 December 2017 156,739,768 29,574,827
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 9 29,574,827 (29,574,827

186,314,595 -
Profit for the year and total comprehensive income for 44,323,526 -
the year
At 31 December 2018 230,638,121 -

n Approval of consolidated finandal statements

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 12 March 2019,
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( ) (HSBC Ingtitutional Trust Services (Asia)

Limited)

()
()

()

(2012 12 18 ) 50,000,000 (716,000,000 )
29

HSBC

(China Southern Asset Management Co. Limited)
(2012 12 18 ) 150,000,000 (2,485,500,000 )

(Oriental Patron AsiaLimited)
(2012 25 ) 12,000,000 (171,840,000 )

(The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited)
(2012 12 18 ) 58,968,707,252.5 (844,431,887,856 ) 10,233,500,000

(1,149,017,380,000 )

()

HSBC

()
()

HSBC

( ) (HSBC Bank (China) Company Limited)
(2012 12 18 ) 12,400,000,000 (205,468,000,000 )

ABN AMRO (ABN AMRO Clearing Hong Kong Limited)

(Barclays Bank PLC) BNP (BNP Paribas Securities

Services) (BOCI Securities Limited) ( ) (China Galaxy
International Securities (Hong Kong) Co., Limited) (China International Capital
Corporation Hong Kong Securities Limited) ( ) (China Merchants Securities (HK) Co., Limited)

(CIMB Securities Limited) ( ) (CITIC Securities Brokerage (HK) Limited)
(Citigroup Globa Markets Asia Limited) CLSA

(CLSA Limited) ( ) (Credit Suisse Securities (Hong Kong)
Limited) (Deutsche Securities Asia Limited) ( )

(Essence International Securities (Hong Kong) Limited) ( )
(Goldman Sachs (Asia) Securities Limited) ( ) (Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong)

Limited) (Haitong International Securities Company Limited)

( ) (JP. Morgan Broking (Hong Kong) Limited) ( ) (KGI Securities

(Hong Kong) Limited) (Macquarie Bank Limited)

(Merrill Lynch Far East Limited)

(Morgan Stanley Hong Kong Securities Limited) ( ) (Nomura
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International (Hong Kong) Limited) (Oriental Patron Securities Limited) ( )
(SG Securities (HK) Limited) (The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Limited) UBS (UBS Securities Hong Kong Limited) ( )

(Y uanta Securities (Hong Kong) Company Limited)

ABN AMRO (2012 19 )
(ABN AMRO Clearing Hong 269,300,000
Kong Limited) (3,856,376,000 )
(Barclays Bank PLC)
BNP (2015 12 31 )
(BNP Paribas Securities 178,000,000
Services) (22,282,040,000 )
(BOCI (2015 12 31 )
Securities Limited) 2,000,000,000
(28,640,000,000 )
( )
(China Galaxy International
Securities (Hong Kong) Co.,
Limited)
(China (2015 12 31 )
International Capital Corporation 843,220,000
Hong Kong Securities Limited) (12,074,910,400 )
( ) (China (2012 30 )
Merchants Securities (HK) Co., 2,000,000,000
Limited) (28,640,000,000 )
(CIMB Securities
Limited)
( ) (CITIC (2012 25 )
Securities Brokerage (HK) Limited) 250,000,000
(3,580,000,000 )
(2012 29 )
301,951,240
(Citigroup Global Markets Asia (4,323,941,757 )
Limited)
CLSA (CLSA Limited)
(2012 12 )
( ) (Credit Suisse 530,902,000
Securities (Hong Kong) Limited) (7,602,516,640 )
(2012 )
(Deutsche Securities 1,264,089,200
Asia Limited) (18,101,757,344 )
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( ) (Essence
International  Securities  (Hong
Kong) Limited)

(2015 12 31
1,000,000,000
(14,320,000, 000

( )
(Goldman

Sachs (Asia) Securities Limited)

(2011 12 24
31,094,981
(3,491,344,467

( ) (Guotai
Junan  Securities (Hong Kong)
Limited)

(2015 12 31
4,700,000,000
(67,304,000,000

(Haitong
International Securities Company
Limited)

(2012
1,500,000, 000
(21,480,000, 000

( ) (J.P. Morgan
Broking (Hong Kong) Limited)

(2012
1,153,365,600
(16,516,195,392

( ) (KGI
Securities (Hong Kong) Limited)

(Macquarie Bank Limited)

(2015 31
163,000,000
(12,837,880,000

(Merrill Lynch Far East
Limited)

(2011 12 19
17,000,000
(243,440,000

(Morgan
Stanley Hong Kong Securities
Limited)

( (2012 23

) (Nomura International 2.00
(Hong Kong) Limited) (29

3,200,000,000
(Oriental (2012

Patron Securities Limited) 20,000,000

(286,400,000
( ) (S6

Securities (HK) Limited)

(The
Hongkong and Shanghai  Banking
Corporation Limited)

(2012 12 18
58,968,707,252.5
(844,431,887,856
10,233,500, 000
(1,149,017,380,000

UBS
(UBS Securities Hong Kong
Limited)

(2012 10 31
430,000,000
(6,157,600, 000
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( ) (Yuanta
Securities (Hong Kong) Company
Limited)

(2015 12 31 )
9,151,651,000
(33,220,493,130 )

HK (Bluefin HK Limited)
Limited) ( )

( ) (China Merchants Securities (HK) Co.,

(CITIC Securities Brokerage (HK) Limited)

(Citigroup Global Markets Asia Limited)

(Commerz Securities Hong Kong Limited)
Suisse Securities (Hong Kong) Limited)
Limited)

(IMC Asia Pecific Limited)

Kong Limited) UBS

Kong Limited)

( ) (Credit
(Deutsche Securities Asia

(Haitong International Securities Company Limited) IMC

(Optiver Trading Hong
(UBS Securities Hong Kong Limited)

HK (Bluefin HK Limited) BNP ( ) (BNP Paribas
Securities (Asia) Limited) ( ) (China Merchants Securities (HK) Co., Limited)
(Commerz Securities Hong Kong Limited) (

) (Credit Suisse Securities (Hong Kong) Limited)

(Deutsche Securities Asia Limited)
( ) (Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited)
Securities Company Limited) IMC

( ) (Eclipse Options (HK) Limited)
(Haitong International

(IMC Asia Pacific Limited)

(Optiver Trading Hong Kong Limited)

(Tibra Trading Hong Kong Limited) UBS
(Y ue Kun Research Limited)

(UBS Securities Hong

HK (Bluefin (2012 26 )
HK Limited) 6,170,000
(88,354,400 )
BNP ( (2015 12 31 )
) (BNP  Paribas 178,000,000

Securities (Asia) Limited)

(22,282,040,000 )

( ) (China
Merchants Securities (HK) Co.,
Limited)

(2012 30 )
2,000,000, 000
(28,640,000,000 )

( ) (CITIC
Securities Brokerage (HK) Limited)

(2012 25 )
250,000,000
(3,580,000,000 )

(Citigroup Global Markets Asia
Limited)

(2012 29 )
301,951,240
(4,323,941,757 )
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(Commerz Securities
Hong Kong Limited)
(2012 12 )
( ) (Credit Suisse 530,902,000
Securities (Hong Kong) Limited) (7,602,516,640 )
(2012 )
(Deutsche Securities 1,264,089,200
Asia Limited) (18,101,757,344 )
( )
(Eclipse Options (HK)
Limited)
( ) (Guotai (2015 12 31 )
Junan  Securities (Hong Kong) 4,700,000,000
Limited) (67,304,000,000 )
(Haitong (2012 )
International Securities Company 1,500,000,000
Limited) (21,480,000,000 )
IMC (2012 14 )
(IMC Asia Pacific Limited) 5,000,000
(71,600,000 )
(2012 16 )
(Optiver Trading 23,500,000
Hong Kong Limited) (336,520,000 )
(Tibra Trading Hong
Kong Limited)
UBS (2012 10 31 )
(UBS Securities Hong Kong 430,000,000
Limited) (6,157,600,000 )
(Yue Kun Research Limited)

(HK Conversion Agency Services Limited)

~— ~—

URJ
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(Mandatory

(Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance)

HSBC

@

(b)

( )

HSBC

(b)

(Euro-clear Clearing System Limited)

(Clearstream Banking S.A.)

OFAC
OFAC

HSBC OFAC
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ETF
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ETF RQFII A
( ) RQFII ( )
RQFII RQFII ETF
RQFII HSBC RQFII
HSBC ( )
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RQFII
RQFII
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448,585,791
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15,582,325,704

2018 12

2018 12 31
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR®S REPORT
TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF CSOP FTSE CHINA A50 ETF

(A SUB-FUND OF CSOP ETF SERIES, AN UMBRELLA UNIT TRUST ESTABLISHED IN HONG
KONG)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion
What we have audited

The financial statements of CSOP FTSE China A50 ETF (the Sub-Fund” ), a sub-fund of CSOP
ETF Series, set out on pages 9 to 29, which comprise:

the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018;

the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

the statement of changes in net assets attributable to unitholders for the year then
ended;

the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant
accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Sub-Fund as at 31 December 2018, and of its financial transactions and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“ HKFRSs” ) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(* HKICPA" ).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (* HKSAs” )
issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor®s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Sub-Fund in accordance with the HKICPA"s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the* Code” ), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters

were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF CSOP FTSE CHINA A50 ETF (CONTINUED)
(A SUB-FUND OF CSOP ETF SERIES, AN UMBRELLA UNIT TRUST ESTABLISHED IN HONG

KONG)

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key audit matters identified in our audit are

summarised as follows:

Key Audit Matters

How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matters

Existence and valuation of investments

The Sub-Fund®s investments as at 31
December 2018 were mainly comprised of
listed equities of companies in the
People®s Republic of China, valued at
RMB15,582,325,704. These investments held
by the Sub-Fund include listed equities of
RMB448,585,791 which have been suspended
from trading as at 31 December 2018.

We focused on the existence and valuation
of the investments because the investments
represented the principal element of the
Sub-Fund®"s net asset value. In addition, we
also focused on the valuation of listed
equities which have been suspended from
trading as at 31 December 2018 because the
judgment made by the Manager in determining
their fair values involved a high degree of
subjectivity.

Refer to Note 8 to the financial
statements.

We agreed the existence of the Sub-Fund®s
holdings of investments by obtaining a
direct confirmation from the custodian and
checking the confirmation to the Sub-Fund®s
records. Based on the procedures we
performed, we found the Sub-Fund®s holdings
of investments to be in agreement with the
confirmation received.

We agreed the valuation of the Sub-Fund®s
investments by comparing the pricing used
by the Manager to the publicly available
external pricing sources as at 31 December
2018. We found no material exceptions from
our testing.

For investments which have been suspended
from trading as at the year end, we
assessed the appropriateness of the
valuation methodology adopted by the
Manager. We also assessed the judgment made
in determining the valuation of these
investments by considering factors which
may impact their fair values, including the
duration of the suspension period, the
relevant market information and news of the
suspended listed equities, the price
movement of comparable listed
equities/index during the suspension period
and if applicable, the market prices of the
suspended listed equities upon resumption
of trading after year end.

Based on the procedures we performed, we
found the judgment made by the Manager in
determining the valuation of the
investments to be supported by available
evidence.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR®S REPORT

TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF CSOP FTSE CHINA A50 ETF (CONTINUED)

(A SUB-FUND OF CSOP ETF SERIES, AN UMBRELLA UNIT TRUST ESTABLISHED IN HONG
KONG)

Other Information

The trustee and the manager (the" Management” ) of the Sub-Fund are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the financial statements and our auditor®s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

The Management of the Sub-Fund is responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA,
and for such internal control as the Management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management of the Sub-Fund is responsible for
assessing the Sub-Fund"s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Management either intends to liquidate the Sub-Fund or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

In addition, the Management of the Sub-Fund is required to ensure that the financial
statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the relevant disclosure
provisions of the Trust Deed dated 25 July 2012, as amended (* Trust Deed” ) and the
Appendix E of the Code on Unit Trusts and Mutual Funds issued by the Hong Kong Securities
and Futures Commission (the* SFC Code” ).
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR®S REPORT

TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF CSOP FTSE CHINA A50 ETF (CONTINUED)

(A SUB-FUND OF CSOP ETF SERIES, AN UMBRELLA UNIT TRUST ESTABLISHED IN HONG
KONG)

Auditor*s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor®s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements. In addition, we are required to assess whether the
financial statements of the Sub-Fund have been properly prepared, in all material
respects, in accordance with the relevant disclosure provisions of the Trust Deed and the
Appendix E of the SFC Code.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Sub-Fund®s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management®s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Sub-
Fund®s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor"s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor®s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Sub-Fund to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,

including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR®S REPORT

TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF CSOP FTSE CHINA A50 ETF (CONTINUED)

(A SUB-FUND OF CSOP ETF SERIES, AN UMBRELLA UNIT TRUST ESTABLISHED IN HONG
KONG)

Auditor"s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Continued)

We communicate with the Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Management with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Management, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor®s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Matters Under the Relevant Disclosure Provisions of the Trust Deed and the
Appendix E of the SFC Code

In our opinion, the financial statements have been properly prepared, in all material
respects, in accordance with the relevant disclosure provisions of the Trust Deed and the

Appendix E of the SFC Code.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor®s report is Li,
Lien.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 29 April 2019
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Independent auditor’ s report
To the Members of CSOP Asset Management Limited

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financia statements of CSOP Asset Management Limited (the “Company") and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 10 to 70, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2018, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financia statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSS")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basisfor opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAS’") issued by the
HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statementssection of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion.

Information other than the consolidated financial statements and auditor's report thereon
The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the report of the directors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statementsthat give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations or have no redlistic alternative but to do so.
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Independent auditor' s report (continued)
To the Members of CSOP Asset Management Limited

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes
our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered materia if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAS, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of interna control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’ s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue asa going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in amanner that achieves fair presentation.

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.
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Independent auditor' s report (continued)
To the Members of CSOP Asset Management Limited

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficienciesin internal control that we identify during
our audit.

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong
12 March 2019
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